
 
Steve Atkinson MA(Oxon) MBA FloD FRSA 

Chief Executive 

 

 
Council Offices • Argents Mead • Hinckley • Leicestershire • LE10 1BZ 

Telephone 01455 238141 • MDX No 716429 • Fax 01455 251172 • www.hinckley-bosworth.gov.uk 
 

Date: 21 October 2011 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
To: Members of the Finance, Audit & Performance 

Committee 
 
 Mr PAS Hall (Chairman) 

Miss DM Taylor (Vice-Chairman) 
Mrs R Camamile 
Mr DM Gould 
 

Mr MS Hulbert 
Mr JS Moore 
Mr K Morrell 
 

 
Copy to all other Members of the Council 
 
(other recipients for information) 
 
Dear Councillor, 
 
There will be a meeting of the FINANCE, AUDIT & PERFORMANCE COMMITTEE in the 
Council Chamber, Council Offices, Argents Mead on MONDAY, 31 OCTOBER 2011 at 6.30 
pm and your attendance is required. 
 
The agenda for the meeting is set out overleaf. 
 
Yours sincerely 

 
Denise Bonser 
Democratic Services Officer 
 

Public Document Pack



 
Council Offices • Argents Mead • Hinckley • Leicestershire • LE10 1BZ 

Telephone 01455 238141 • MDX No 716429 • Fax 01455 251172 • www.hinckley-bosworth.gov.uk 
 

FINANCE, AUDIT & PERFORMANCE COMMITTEE -  31 OCTOBER 2011 
 
 

A G E N D A 

 
 
 

 1. APOLOGIES AND SUBSTITUTIONS  

 2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  

  To receive verbally from members any disclosures which they are 
required to make in accordance with the Council’s code of conduct or in 
pursuance of Section 106 of the Local Government Finance Act 1992.  
This is in addition to the need for such disclosure to be also given 
when the relevant matter is reached on the Agenda.  

 3. MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING (Pages 1 - 4) 

  To confirm the minutes of the meeting of the Finance Audit & 
Performance Committee held on  12 September 2011.   

 4. INTERNAL AUDIT PROGRESS REPORT (Pages 5 - 58) 

  Report of RSM Tenon attached  

 5. TREASURY MANAGEMENT ACTIVITY HALF YEAR TO 30 
SEPTEMBER 2011 (Pages 59 - 66) 

  Report of Deputy Chief Executive (Corporate Direction) attached. 

 6. BUDGET STRATEGY 2012/13 (Pages 67 - 70) 

  Report of Deputy Chief Executive (Corporate Direction) attached. 

 7. AUDIT RECOMMENDATION TRACKING (Pages 71 - 76) 

  Report of Deputy Chief Executive (Corporate Direction) attached. 

 8. CAR PARKS COLLECTION CONTRACT  

  A verbal report will be given at the meeting. 

 9. WORK PROGRAMME 2011/12 (Pages 77 - 84) 

  Attached. 

To:  All Members of the Executive with a copy to all other Members of the Council. 



 69 

Report No FAP15 
HINCKLEY & BOSWORTH BOROUGH COUNCIL 

FINANCE & AUDIT SERVICES SELECT COMMITTEE 
 

12 SEPTEMBER 2011 AT 6.30 PM 
 
PRESENT: Mr PAS Hall – Chairman 
   
 Mrs R Camamile, Mr DM Gould, Mr MS Hulbert, Mr J Moore 

and Mr K Morrell. 
 
 In accordance with Council Procedure Rule 4.2 Mr MR Lay was also in 

attendance.  
 
 Officers in attendance: Mrs D Bonser, Mr D Bunker, Miss L Horton, Mr S 

Kohli, Mrs S Stacey and Mr S Wood. 
 
 Colin Roxburgh and Chris Williams of RSM Tenon and Mark Jones of 

Price Waterhouse Cooper were also in attendance.  
 
149 APOLOGIES 
 
 An apology for absence was submitted on behalf of Miss D Taylor. 
 
150 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
 
 No interests were declared at this stage. 
 
151 MINUTES (FAP7) 
 
 On the motion of Mr Hall, seconded by Mr Moore it was 
 
   RESOLVED – the minutes of the meeting held on 25 July 

2011 be agreed and signed by the Chairman. 
 
 At this juncture Mrs Camamile enquired into the protocol of agreeing the 

last minutes of the Council Services Select Committee meeting as the 
Committee no longer exists.  It was recommended that they be taken to 
Scrutiny Commission for agreement.  

 
 Mr Gould entered the meeting at 6.43 pm 
 
152 INTERNAL AUDIT PROGRESS REPORT (FAP8) 
 
 The Committee received the internal audit progress report presented by 

RSM Tenon.   The report focused on four areas:- 
 
 Community Safety  

• Refresher training had been undertaken by staff and improvements 
in monitoring and case closure have been made.   

• Implementation in November of a new computer system further 
improvement should be achieved. 

Agenda Item 3

Page 1



 70 

 
 Budgetary Control/Setting 

• Underspend explained 

• Systems in place working well 
 

Rent Collection and Arrears 

• Procedures being met 

• New staff managing effectively 
 

Enforcement Planning 

• Random compliance check to be undertaken 

• Feedback every three months to be implemented 
 

RESOLVED – The Committee endorses the report. 
 
153 HBBC REPORT TO THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE (ISA 260) 

(UK&I) (FAP9) 
 
 The external auditors, PricewaterhouseCoopers, presented the annual 

report to those charged with governance.  They concluded that the 
Council’s accounts showed a positive audit process and an unqualified 
opinion was being given on the financial statements with a positive value 
for money opinion. Mark Jones thanked Sanjiv Kohli and the Accountancy 
staff for their cooperation during the audit.  Adjustments had been made on 
recommendations highlighted.  The Deputy Chief Executive (Corporate 
Direction) thanked the auditors for their early assistance and guidance with 
regard to the implementation of IFRS. 

   
RESOLVED – The Committee endorses the report.  
 

154 ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT (FAP10) 
 
 The Committee was presented with the Annual Corporate Governance 

Statement.  Members were advised that a reported breach of procedures 
had been dealt with and no financial loss had been incurred by the 
Council. 

 
  RESOLVED – the Governance Statement be endorsed and 

RECOMMENDED to Council for approval. 
 

155 REVENUE AND CAPITAL OUTTURN 1ST QUARTER 2011/12 (FAP11) 
 
 Members received the first quarter outturn report.  It was noted that the 

Government’s optional pay award for employees earning under £21,000 
had not been implemented.  The Committee was informed that the reason 
for this was that there was no national agreement to implement and in 
consultation with the local and regional trade union representatives 
agreement had been made to defer this course of action.  It was suggested 
by Members that a one-off payment be considered and upon a show of 
hands it was unanimously agreed that this be put to Scrutiny for 
consideration.    

Page 2



 71 

 
RESOLVED – the report be noted and the one off payment of 

£250 for all employees earning less than £21,000 be 
referred to Scrutiny Commission to consider. 

 

 
156 STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS (FAP12) 
 
 The Committee received the draft Statement of Accounts for 2010/11.  
 
  RESOLVED – the Statement of Accounts be endorsed and 

RECOMMENDED for approval by Council. 
 
157 PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT FRAMEWORK (FAP13) 
 
 The Committee were provided with the Council’s current performance 

indicators for the first quarter with 94% having met their target.  Members 
noted that significant improvement in waiting time when calling the 
switchboard had been achieved and asked that this be commended to staff 
involved.  Sickness absence was another area which had improved 
significantly and this should be applauded. 

 
         RESOLVED – The Committee endorses the report 
 
158 WORK PROGRAMME 2011/12 (FAP14) 
 
 Members gave consideration to the Committee’s work programme for 

2010/11. It was agreed that the three items carried forward from the 
minutes of 25 July be added  to the work programme and discussed at the 
next meeting. 

 
  RESOLVED – the work programme be agreed with the 

abovementioned additions. 
 

 
 

 (The meeting closed at 8.25 pm) 
 

Page 3



Page 4

This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

 
 
 
HINCKLEY AND BOSWORTH BOROUGH COUNCIL 

 
Internal Audit Progress Report  
 
Finance and Audit Select Committee Meeting – 31st October 2011 

 

 

A
genda Item

 4

P
age 5



HINCKLEY AND BOSWORTH BOROUGH COUNCIL         Internal Audit Progress Report – 31
st
 October 2011 

 

 

 

 

1

CONTENTS  

SECTION    Page 

1 Introduction  1 

2 Final reports issued  1 

3 Key Findings from Internal Audit Work  2 

4 Work in Progress or Planned  4 

5 Liaison with Management and External Audit  4 

6 Changes to our Plan  4 

Appendix A Hinckley and Bosworth Borough Council – Operational Plan Performance 2011/12  5 

Appendix B Hinckley and Bosworth Borough Council – Executive Summaries and Action Plans: 

� Risk Management 

� Health and Safety 

� Project Management 

� Key Performance Indicators 

� Planning 

 

� Housing Allocations and Voids 

� Homelessness 

� Treasury Management 

� IT Strategy Review 

9 

 

 
The matters raised in this report are only those which came to our attention during our internal audit work and are not necessarily a comprehensive statement of all the weaknesses 
that exist, or of all the improvements that may be required.  Whilst every care has been taken to ensure that the information provided in this report is as accurate as possible, based 
on the information provided and documentation reviewed, no complete guarantee or warranty can be given with regard to the advice and information contained herein.  Our work 
does not provide absolute assurance that material errors, loss or fraud do not exist.   
 
This report is prepared solely for the use of Board and senior management of Hinckley and Bosworth Borough Council.  Details may be made available to specified external 
agencies, including external auditors, but otherwise the report should not be quoted or referred to in whole or in part without prior consent.  No responsibility to any third party is 
accepted as the report has not been prepared, and is not intended for any other purpose. 

 
© 2011 RSM Tenon Limited. RSM Tenon Limited is a member of RSM Tenon Group. RSM Tenon Limited is an independent member firm of RSM International an affiliation of 
independent accounting and consulting firms.  RSM International is the name given to a network of independent accounting and consulting firms each of which practices in its own 
right.  RSM International does not exist in any jurisdiction as a separate legal entity.  
 
RSM Tenon Limited (No 4066924) is registered in England and Wales.  Registered Office 66 Chiltern Street, London W1U 4GB. England  

P
age 6



HINCKLEY AND BOSWORTH BOROUGH COUNCIL         Internal Audit Progress Report – 31
st
 October 2011 

 

 

         1 

 

 

 

1. INTRODUCTION 

1.1   The periodic internal audit plan for 2011/12 was approved by the Finance and Audit Select Committee on 14
th
 February 2011.  This report summarises the 

outcome of work completed to date against that plan, and Appendix A provides cumulative data in support of internal audit performance. 

2. FINAL REPORTS ISSUED 

2.1 We have finalised 9 reports since the last Committee meeting; these are in the areas of: 

� Risk Management; 

� Health and Safety; 

� Project Management; 

� Key Performance Indicators; 

� Planning; 

� Housing Allocations and Voids; 

� Homelessness; 

� Treasury Management; and 

� IT Strategy Review. 

2.2 The executive summaries and agreed action plans for recommendations classified as ‘High’ and ‘Medium’ risk are included at Appendix B. Full reports of all 
recommendations including ‘Low’ risk can be provided upon request.  The ‘Low’ risk recommendations are not included in this report, as it is felt that time and 
attention should be focused on the more significant risks facing the Authority (i.e. ‘High’ and ‘Medium’ recommendations).  

P
age 7



HINCKLEY AND BOSWORTH BOROUGH COUNCIL         Internal Audit Progress Report – 31
st
 October 2011 

 

 

         2 

 

 

 

3. KEY FINDINGS FROM INTERNAL AUDIT WORK 

3.1 We have raised 48 recommendations across the 9 reviews that are being presented to this Committee; eight recommendations have been classified as ‘High’ 
Risk, 10 recommendations have been classified as ‘Medium’ Risk and the remaining 30 recommendations have been classified as ‘Low’ Risk. 

3.2 The High and Medium Risk recommendations raised as part of the reviews relate to: 

� Risk Management (Pages 9 - 17) - (Recommendation No.1) Prior to September 2010 there was a dedicated Risk Champion at the Council who ensured the 
“TEN” system was updated on a regular basis by risk owners and that regular reports were produced for various management teams and Members.  However, in 
September 2010 this person relocated to a new position within the Council and since the relocation, in September 2010, of the Council’s dedicated Risk Champion, 
there has been very little formal update of the risk registers on the “TEN” system, or production of formal reports or up-dates regarding risk to either senior 
management or Members. Following the above change, risk owners have not updated their risks on the “TEN” system and the formal governance of risk has not 
been evidenced. (High Risk) 

� Risk Management – (Recommendation No.2) The Council has a Risk Management Strategy in place that was last updated in June 2010 and was due to be 
reviewed in June 2011, although at the time of the audit the review had not been performed. This strategy provides staff with sufficient detail on how the Risk 
Management Framework at the Council operates (Medium Risk) 

� Risk Management – (Recommendation No.3) No Risk Management refresher training and awareness programmes have been delivered across the Council during 
2010/11 and into 2011/12. (Medium Risk) 

� Risk Management – (Recommendation No.4) No report or formal updates have been presented to the Finance and Audit Committee since 2010. Although the 
Strategic Leadership Board had received a Risk Management - end of year report for 2009/10 in June 2010, there was no such report for 2010/11, and similarly, 
there had been no reports on Risk Management produced for either the Corporate Operations Board or the Joint SLB/COB (Risk Management Group). (High Risk) 

� Risk Management – (Recommendation No.5) As at July 2011, the Council’s Strategic Risk Register currently documented in “TEN” has 23 risks that were last 
reviewed and updated in March 2011. From these 23 strategic risks, 10 were identified and entered in 2006, 3 in 2007, 2 in 2008, 2 in 2009, 2 in 2010 and only 1 
has been identified in 2011. Testing on the other 3 Risk Registers (Corporate Services, Community Services and Business Contracts and Waste) confirmed that 
there had been no new risks identified since September 2010. (High Risk) 

� Risk Management – (Recommendation No.6) There was no evidence to confirm that risks are discussed on a regular basis within team meetings; ensuring current 
risks are updated and also any new risks discussed to determine if they need to be included on the Risk Register. (High Risk) 

� Risk Management – (Recommendation No.7) Testing on the “TEN” system confirmed that no updates / reviews on the risks have been carried out from 1
st
 April 

2011, including the review and update of mitigating controls and action plans. Action plans have not been updated during 2011 and where actions have been 
completed, the “TEN” system has not been updated to reflect this. (High Risk) 

� Risk Management – (Recommendation No.8) The Council’s Risk Management Strategy does not provide any guidance around key sources of assurance that can 
be used to support the management of each risk. (High Risk) 

� Risk Management – (Recommendation No.9) There has been no formal review and reporting of risks throughout the Council, including meetings of the Executive, 
Finance and Audit Committee, SLB and COB from 1st April 2011. (High Risk) 

P
age 8



HINCKLEY AND BOSWORTH BOROUGH COUNCIL         Internal Audit Progress Report – 31
st
 October 2011 

 

 

         3 

 

 

 

� Risk Management – (Recommendation No.10) All papers prepared for various committees and groups, where decisions are made, include a section on “Risk 
Implications” where the author is required to identify the potential risks in relation to the proposed decision.  However, testing confirmed that these new risks are not 
then transferred onto “TEN” to be managed.(High Risk) 

� Project Management (Pages 22-26) – (Recommendation No.1) The Prince2 project management methodology has not been used for the Burbage Common 
Project and the Recycling Containers Project, as these did not meet the financial threshold requirements at which full compliance with Prince2 is required. This 
resulted in a number of documents not being completed including, the Project Initiation Document; Project Plan; Project Scope statement; Communication Plan; 
Risk Register; Project Schedule; Issue Logs; and Business Case. However, it has not been made clear as to what documents are or are not required for various 
sizes of project, which can lead to inconsistency of approach and uncertainty amongst Project Managers. (Medium Risk) 

� Project Management – (Recommendation No.2) Three out of the four projects audited did not clearly have defined project baselines of scope, schedule and cost 
until late into the project. The lack of established baselines means that there is a lack of focussed control of the project and credible performance 
measurements.(Medium Risk)   

� Key Performance Indicators (see Pages 27-31) – (Recommendation No.1) We confirmed that the KPI targets are to be reviewed by the Joint Board on 10
th
 

August for approval. These have been reviewed and scrutinised by the Chief Executive, although formal approval has not yet been obtained. Of the sample of six 
indicators reviewed we found that three had no target recorded for 2011/12 in TEN.  There is a risk that performance is not maximised without the inclusion of a 
SMART target for the service to aim for and justify their position against.(Medium Risk)   

� Key Performance Indicators – (Recommendation No.2) For the sample of six indicators reviewed we confirmed the data reported for the year to date, or where 
annual at the submission for 2010/11 was appropriately supported by working papers detailing the figures used to calculate the KPI.  Supporting documentation 
was seen for all KPIs reported with the exception of NI158, where the Integrator report used to calculate the percentage of non-decent council homes within the 
Borough did not include the appropriate detail to evidence reconciliation to values submitted at 31

st
 March 2011.  There is a risk that the performance reported is 

inaccurate.  (Medium Risk)   

� Planning (see Pages 32-36) – (Recommendation No.1) The Scheme of Delegation names the Deputy Chief Executive (Community Direction) as the delegated 
Officer to determine all planning decisions, with the exception of those listed as delegated to the Planning Committee. Discussions with key staff advised that this 
delegation has been disseminated to Planning management staff; being the Head of Planning, Head of Development Control and the two Principal Planning 
Officers. However, there is no evidence that this delegation has been formally documented and approved.(Medium Risk)   

� Homelessness (see Pages 40-44) – (Recommendation No.1) In accordance with the Homelessness Act 2002, Applicants must fulfil the five criteria in order to be 
successful in being provided with temporary accommodation. Within the application form there is a decision form which the witness (Housing Options Officer) 
completes in order to make a decision. It was confirmed through testing a sample of 15 cases that in seven instances the decision form had not been completed.  
Without a completed decision form there is a risk that one or more aspects of the criteria may not be met and as a consequence the Council will not be adhering to 
the statutory requirements. (Medium Risk)    

� Homelessness – (Recommendation No.2) Once a decision has been made by the Housing Options Officer a decision letter is sent out to the applicant.   It was 
confirmed through testing a sample of 15 cases, that a decision letter was sent out to all applicants. It was identified that the decision letters were not clear in 
illustrating the Council’s final decision to the applicant. There is a risk that the applicant may not understand the Council’s decision and appeal the decision, resulting 
in further work for the department. (Medium Risk)   

P
age 9



HINCKLEY AND BOSWORTH BOROUGH COUNCIL         Internal Audit Progress Report – 31
st
 October 2011 

 

 

         4 

 

 

 

� Homelessness – (Recommendation No.3) The Orchard system has only recently started to be used to record details of homelessness applications and a full 
review of the effectiveness of the system for homelessness has not yet been completed. Monitoring information is still retained on a spreadsheet. In addition; the 
application form questions and the questions within the Orchard system are different and therefore dependant on the Officers interpretation of what information is 
input onto the system.  Currently, the applicant’s information is input into the Orchard system once the application process is complete and a spreadsheet is still 
maintained to record and monitor all cases. There is a risk that not all information is accurately input onto the system and there is no consistency in the information 
input by the Officers. (Medium Risk) 

4. WORK IN PROGRESS OR PLANNED 

4.1 For all remaining audits, commencement dates have been agreed with the auditees and all assignment planning sheets have been issued.  

4.2 Six audits are nearing completion / draft reports have been issued. These relate to IT Contract / Maintenance, Creditors, Income and Debtors, Corporate 
Governance, Atkins Building Commercial Management, and Asset Management. The audit of Payroll is currently in progress. 

5. LIAISON WITH MANAGEMENT AND EXTERNAL AUDIT 

5.1 Our management staff meet regularly with the Deputy Chief Executive (Corporate Direction), as well as other members of senior management to discuss the 
progress of the internal audit work. 

6. CHANGES TO OUR PLAN 

6.1 The only change to the Internal Audit Plan 2011/12 since the last committee meeting, in agreement with the Deputy Chief Executive (Corporate Direction), is 
the audit of the New Council Offices. This audit was replaced by an audit of the Atkins Building: Commercial Management; as this was considered to be of 
more interest to the Council at this stage of the process. Internal Audit had no objections to the change as an audit of New Council Offices has taken place in 
recent years, which has also led to a positive assurance opinion being given.  

P
age 10



HINCKLEY AND BOSWORTH BOROUGH COUNCIL         Internal Audit Progress Report – 31
st
 October 2011 

 

 

         5 

 

 

 

APPENDIX A: HINCKLEY AND BOSWORTH BOROUGH COUNCIL – OPERATIONAL PLAN PERFORMANCE 
2011/12  

Detailed below is a summary of the work undertaken in 2011/12 to date, showing the levels of assurance given and the number of recommendations arising.  Reports 
being considered at this Committee are shown in bold and italics. Definitions with regard to the levels of assurance and the classification of recommendations are 
provided overleaf. 

 Auditable Area Start 
Date 

 

Debrief 
date 

Draft 
report 
issued 

Responses 
received 

Final report 
issued 

Audit 
Committee 

Audit 
approach 

Audit 
Days  

Assurance level 
given 

Number of Recommendations Made 

 H M L In 
Total 

Agreed 

Work completed to date 

 Risk Management 11/07/11 19/08/11 02/09/11 02/09/11 12/09/11 31/10/11 Advisory 5 N/A 8 2 1 11 11 

 Health and Safety 
18/07/11 04/08/11 07/09/11 13/09/11 13/09/11 31/10/11 

Key 
Controls 

8 
AMBER / 
GREEN 

0 0 7 7 7 

 Project Management 
25/07/11 29/08/11 13/09/11 22/09/11 22/09/11 31/10/11 

Key 
Controls 

5 
AMBER / 
GREEN 

0 2 4 6 6 

 Key Performance 
Indicators 

01/08/11 05/08/11 17/08/11 08/09/11 08/09/11 31/10/11 
Key 

Controls 
5 

AMBER / 
GREEN 

0 2 4 6 6 

 Planning 12/09/11 16/09/11 27/09/11 12/10/10 12/10/11 31/10/11 
Key 

Controls 6 GREEN 0 1 1 2 2 

 Housing Allocations 
& Voids 

05/09/11 09/09/11 28/09/11 05/10/11 11/10/11 31/10/11 
Key 

Controls 7 GREEN 0 0 2 2 2 

 Homelessness 12/09/11 16/09/11 27/09/11 14/10/11 14/10/11 31/10/11 
Key 

Controls 6 
AMBER / 
GREEN 

0 3 4 7 7 

 Treasury 
Management 

12/09/11 16/09/11 26/09/11 17/10/11 17/10/11 31/10/11 
Key 

Controls 6 GREEN 0 0 5 5 5 

 IT Strategy Review 
12/09/11 23/09/11 10/10/11 18/10/11 18/10/11 31/10/11 

Key 
Controls 

6 GREEN 0 0 2 2 2 

 Budgetary Control 
and Budget Setting 

11/07/11 15/07/11 25/07/11 11/08/11 11/08/11 12/09/11 
Key 

Controls 8 GREEN 0 0 1 1 1 

 Rent Collection and 
Arrears 

11/07/11 22/07/11 08/08/11 10/08/11 11/08/11 12/09/11 
Key 

Controls 5 GREEN 0 0 0 0 0 

P
age 11



HINCKLEY AND BOSWORTH BOROUGH COUNCIL         Internal Audit Progress Report – 31
st
 October 2011 

 

 

         6 

 

 

 

 Auditable Area Start 
Date 

 

Debrief 
date 

Draft 
report 
issued 

Responses 
received 

Final report 
issued 

Audit 
Committee 

Audit 
approach 

Audit 
Days  

Assurance level 
given 

Number of Recommendations Made 

 H M L In 
Total 

Agreed 

 Community Safety 
25/07/11 29/08/11 17/08/11 19/08/11 22/08/11 12/09/11 

Key 
Controls 

5 
AMBER / 
GREEN 

0 2 2 4 4 

 Enforcement 01/08/11 05/08/11 17/08/11 24/08/11 24/08/11 12/09/11 Key Controls 6 AMBER / RED 1 2 3 6 5 

 

Car parks 09/05/11 16/05/11 02/05/11 16/06/11 16/06/11 25/07/11 
Key 

Controls 
6 GREEN 0 3 0 3 3 

Trade Waste (new 
VAT allowances) 

31/05/11 08/06/11 16/06/11 27/06/11 28/06/11 25/07/11 
Key 

Controls 
6 GREEN 0 0 2 2 2 

Performance 
Management 

06/06/11 10/06/11 22/06/11 01/07/11 01/07/11 25/07/11 
Key 

Controls 
6 GREEN 0 0 3 3 3 

Local Development 
Framework 

16/05/11 23/06/11 N/A N/A 4/07/11 25/07/11 
Key 

Controls 
5 GREEN 0 0 0 0 0 

Financial Regulations 31/05/11 23/06/11 03/07/11 14/07/11 18/07/11 25/07/11 
Key 

Controls 
4 GREEN 0 3 1 4 4 

 Master Plan 16/05/11 24/06/11 05/07/11 14/07/11 18/07/11 25/07/11 
Key 

Controls 
5 GREEN 0 0 1 1 1 

 
Supporting people / 
Wardens 

13/06/11 17/06/11 7/07/11 13/07/11 14/07/11 25/07/11 
Key 

Controls 
6 GREEN 0 2 0 2 2 

Totals to date: 116  9 22 43 74 73 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 12



HINCKLEY AND BOSWORTH BOROUGH COUNCIL         Internal Audit Progress Report – 31
st
 October 2011 

 

 

         7 

 

 

 

 

 

Auditable Area Start 
Date 

 

Debrief 
date 

Draft 
report 
issued 

Responses 
received 

Final report 
issued 

Audit 
Committee 

Audit 
approach 

Audit 
Days  

Assurance level 
given 

Number of Recommendations Made 

H M L In 
Total 

Agreed 

Work in progress or yet to start (including reports still in draft)  

 Atkins Building – 
Commercial 
Management 

03/10/11 14/10/11 17/10/11     5       

IT Contract / 
Maintenance 

12/09/11 16/09/11 18/10/11     10       

Creditors 05/09/11 15/10/11      8       

Income and Debtors 05/09/11 15/10/11      8       

Asset Register 03/10/11 15/10/11      8       

Corporate 
Governance 

03/10/11 15/10/11      5       

VAT 19/12/11       8       

General Ledger/ Main 
Accounting System 

14/11/11       8       

Payroll 31/10/11       8       

Housing Benefit 
(shared service)* 

07/11/11       70*       

Council Tax (shared 
service)* 

28/11/11       -*       

NNDR (shared 
service)* 

28/11/11       -*       

Data Protection and 
Freedom of 
Information  

17/10/11       6       

P
age 13



HINCKLEY AND BOSWORTH BOROUGH COUNCIL         Internal Audit Progress Report – 31
st
 October 2011 

 

 

         8 

 

 

 

Auditable Area Start 
Date 

 

Debrief 
date 

Draft 
report 
issued 

Responses 
received 

Final report 
issued 

Audit 
Committee 

Audit 
approach 

Audit 
Days  

Assurance level 
given 

Number of Recommendations Made 

H M L In 
Total 

Agreed 

Public Consultations / 
Citizens Panel 

12/12/11       6       

Housing Repairs 05/12/11       10       

Contracts Review  On-going       10       

Counter Fraud TBC       10       

Follow Up On-going       10       

Spot Checks (Bank 
Accounts at 
Sheltered Housing 
Schemes) 

On-going       5       

Audit Management N/A       25       

 TOTAL        220       

NB * Shared Service Revenues and Benefits Reviews Days – 70 = total number of days for combined review of three audit areas, Council Tax, NNDR, and Housing 
Benefits. Final costs are to be apportioned between each of the three District Councils.  

P
age 14



HINCKLEY AND BOSWORTH BOROUGH COUNCIL         Internal Audit Progress Report – 31
st
 October 2011 

 

 

         9 

 

 

 

APPENDIX B: HINCKLEY AND BOSWORTH BOROUGH COUNCIL – EXECUTIVE SUMMARIES AND ACTION 
PLANS 

RISK MANAGEMENT  

1.  EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

1.1  INTRODUCTION 

This report covers the Risk Maturity review that has recently been carried out. This was approved as part of the Internal Audit Plan 2011/12. The work was 
performed as an advisory review and as a result will not produce a formal opinion. However, the information included within this report may influence or be used to 
inform the Annual Head of Internal Audit opinion. 

The Council’s Risk Management Framework consists of a strategic risk register, and four operational / directorate risk registers.  All data is recorded on the Councils 
risk management system “TEN”. The maintenance of the “TEN” system is the responsibility of each directorate lead, with the overall consolidated reporting 
accountability being with the Chief Officer / Monitoring Officer. 

Prior to September 2010, the Council employed a dedicated risk champion who was responsible for the maintenance and reporting of the risk registers, and for 
meeting with risk owners to update and refresh the risks within their areas of responsibility.  This approach has previously been reviewed by Internal Audit and was 
concluded as being effective and embedded at that time.  However, post September 2010, this dedicated individual relocated within the Council and as a result, the 
maintenance and updating of the risk registers on “TEN” was devolved to the directorate leads.  

Risk Maturity is defined as: 

 “the extent to which a robust risk management approach has been adopted and applied as planned by management across the organisation, to identify, assess, 
decide on responses to, and report on opportunities and threats that affect the achievement of the organisation’s objectives.”

1
 

During the course of this review, we have been considering not only what framework the Council has in place to; identify, assess, record and monitor risks, but how 
that information is used within the organisation. In doing this we have assessed and presented individual views within the conclusion against the following key 
components: Governance; Risk Identification; Risk Assessment; Risk Mitigation; Assurance; and Monitoring and Reporting. 

 

 

 

                                                
1
 Institute of Internal Auditors 

P
age 15



HINCKLEY AND BOSWORTH BOROUGH COUNCIL         Internal Audit Progress Report – 31
st
 October 2011 

 

 

         10 

 

 

 

1.1 CONCLUSION 

Prior to September 2010, the previous Internal Audit reviews concluded that the management of risks within the Council was effective.  However, at that time the 
risk champion responsible for the implementation and on-going review of the risk management system relocated within the Council, and responsibilities for this 
area, including the documenting and reporting of risk registers, was devolved to the Directorate Leads. It is apparent that since September 2011, the core 
reporting system ‘TEN’ has not been fully utilised as had been originally intended. In addition, there has been little centralised formal reporting of risks through to 
the Executive and the Finance and Audit Committee from either the Senior Leadership Board or the Corporate Operations Board. 

Based on the above observations, we have concluded that the Council’s risk management framework and reporting arrangements as at July 2011correspond in 
the matrix diagram below as ‘Risk Aware’ across each of the six component areas. The review recognised that prior to September 2010 there was a good risk 
management framework in operation. However based on the current lack of formal arrangements in place we were unable to rate any of the six components 
higher at a higher level of risk maturity, as at the time of the current audit there was insufficient evidence available to demonstrate that the “Risk Management 
approach meets basic expectations of stakeholders”, and thus reach the Risk Defined level. 

It was also recognised during the course of the review and through discussions with key Officers that there was a general understanding and awareness of the 
requirements for the Council’s risk management processes and procedures. However, as above there is currently a lack of sufficient evidence of formal risk 
management reporting and updating of risks for us to conclude that the risk management system is operating effectively in practice.  

We understand the that the Council are unlikely to strive to become Risk Enabled in the near future due to a reduction in capacity and resources resulting from 
government funding cuts and savings targets, and thus we have made recommendations which are intended to provide guidance to the Council to assist in 
improving the risk management framework, and to move back up from the Risk Aware rating to become Risk Defined and thence Risk Managed during 
2011/2012. 

We note that since the completion of the audit fieldwork, management have actively begun to update and refresh the risk registers in “TEN” and to improve the 
reporting processes. We obviously welcome and appreciate this work and the speed with which management have reacted to our findings. If management 
continue to revitalise and refresh risk information, and ally this with regular reporting through key risk governance committees / groups, we are confident that the 
Council’s risk maturity level will quickly improve so that risk management can regain its former levels of effectiveness.  

We will undertake a follow-up review later in 2011/12 to review the extent to which such progress has been made. 

P
age 16



HINCKLEY AND BOSWORTH BOROUGH COUNCIL         Internal Audit Progress Report – 31
st
 October 2011 

 

 

         11 

 

 

 

 

P
age 17



HINCKLEY AND BOSWORTH BOROUGH COUNCIL         Internal Audit Progress Report – 31
st
 October 2011 

 

 

         12 

 

 

 

1.3 APPROACH TO REVIEW 

The following areas were included in this review: 

� The commitment to Risk Management by senior levels of management; 

� The presence of working Risk Registers (with prioritised risks; assigned actions; assurances feeding back into the process) and an aggregated shortlist of 
highest risks reported to the Board; 

� The extent to which Risk Management is embedded throughout the organisation; and 

� Evidence that risks and opportunities are considered to inform decision making. 

We have interviewed: 

� Steve Atkinson, Chief Executive; 

� Sanjiv Kohli, Deputy Chief Executive (Corporate Direction); 

� Councillor Peter Hall, Chair of Finance and Audit Committee; 

� Louisa Horton, Chief Officer - Corporate & Customer Resources, Scrutiny & Ethical Standards; and 

� Cal Bellavia, Risk Management Officer. 

Limitations to the scope of the audit: 

� This review did not comment on whether individual risks were appropriately managed, or whether the organisation had identified all of the risks and opportunities 
facing it. 

� We do not endorse a particular means of risk management. It remains the responsibility of management to agree and manage information needs and to 
determine what works most effectively for the organisation. 

� Evaluation of the maturity of the organisation has been assessed through discussion with management and through review of documentation provided during 
the course of the audit. 

� Our work does not provide any absolute assurance that material error; loss or fraud does not exist. 

P
age 18



HINCKLEY AND BOSWORTH BOROUGH COUNCIL         Internal Audit Progress Report – 31
st
 October 2011 

 

 

         13 

 

 

 

1.4 RECOMMENDATIONS SUMMARY 

The following table highlights the number and categories of recommendations made.  The Action Plan at Section 2 details the specific recommendations made 
as well as agreed management actions to implement them. 

Recommendations made during this audit: 

 High Medium Low Suggestions Total 

GOVERNANCE 2 2 0 0 4 

RISK IDENTIFICATION 2 0 1 0 3 

RISK ASSESSMENT 0 0 0 0 0 

RISK MITIGATION 1 0 0 0 1 

ASSURANCE 1 0 0 0 1 

MONITORING AND REPORTING 2 0 0 0 2 

TOTAL 8 2 1 0 11 

 

P
age 19



HINCKLEY AND BOSWORTH BOROUGH COUNCIL         Internal Audit Progress Report – 31
st
 October 2011 

 

 

         14 

 

 

 

2 ACTION PLAN 

The priority of the recommendations made is as follows: 

Priority Description 

High 

Recommendations are prioritised to reflect our assessment of risk associated with the control weaknesses. Medium 

Low 

Suggestion These are not formal recommendations that impact our overall opinion, but used to highlight a suggestion or idea that management may want to 
consider. 

 

Ref Recommendation Categorisation Accepted 

(Y/N) 

Management Comment Implementation 
Date 

Manager 
Responsible 

Governance - Establishment of a defined approach that ensures risk management can be used to inform business planning and support business decisions. 

1 The Council should ensure that a key 
Officer is assigned to oversee the updating 
of the risk management system “TEN” by 
risk owners and to prepare reports for 
management groups and committees. 

This role will ensure that the system is 
updated on a regular basis, and will act as 
a check and challenge on the data within 
TEN to ensure that reports produced for 
management and members reflect the 
current risk profile for the Council. 

The Council should also ensure that Risk 
Owners understand their responsibilities for 
updating their risks on “TEN”, and that the 
Risk Champion is there to support them in 
driving and embedding risk management 
throughout the Council. 

High Y This role has been incorporated into the 
role of the Consultation and Improvement 
Officer.  The Chief Officer will be the “risk 
champion” and will ensure that the 
Corporate Operations Board retains 
ownership of the risks and that they are 
effectively reviewed. 

Immediate LH 

P
age 20



HINCKLEY AND BOSWORTH BOROUGH COUNCIL         Internal Audit Progress Report – 31
st
 October 2011 

 

 

         15 

 

 

 

Ref Recommendation Categorisation Accepted 

(Y/N) 

Management Comment Implementation 
Date 

Manager 
Responsible 

2 The Risk Management Strategy should be 
reviewed and updated for 2011/2012 

Medium Y In progress, the review date was July 
2011. 

September 
2011 

LH 

3 The Council should develop a risk 
management training and awareness 
programme to ensure that all staff / 
Members are aware of and understand the 
principles laid down in the Risk 
Management Strategy. 

Medium Y A programme will be developed using the 
e learning tool.  On-going training and 
support will be given when requested by 
the Consultation and Improvement Officer. 

October 2011 LH 

4 Management should ensure that Finance 
and Audit Committee, Senior Leadership 
Board and Corporate Operations Board 
receive regular update reports of the 
Councils key risks, including details of each 
of the specific risks and an updated 
position on controls, action plans and 
assurances. 

A year-end report for 2011/2012 should be 
compiled and submitted to the Executive 
summarising risk management at the 
Council over the year. 

High Y The 1
st
 Quarter data is being sent to the 

Finance Audit and Performance 
Committee in September 2011, this will be 
sent quarterly. 

The Joint SLB/COB meetings which are 
held quarterly have a standing item on the 
agenda to discuss risk. 

The Deputy Chief Executive service area 
meetings include reviewing risks. 

September 
2011 

LH 

Risk Identification – Identifying the risks facing the organisation, the causes of those risks and consequences should those risks occur. 

5 The Council / risk owners should undertake 
a complete review of the risks held on 
“TEN” in order to determine whether these 
are still the key risks the Council are facing 
during 2011/12 and beyond.  

High Y This process is underway at both the 
service and strategic levels. 

October 2011 LH 

P
age 21



HINCKLEY AND BOSWORTH BOROUGH COUNCIL         Internal Audit Progress Report – 31
st
 October 2011 

 

 

         16 

 

 

 

 

Ref Recommendation Categorisation Accepted 

(Y/N) 

Management Comment Implementation 
Date 

Manager 
Responsible 

6 An agenda item should be set across 
service and team meetings at least on a 
quarterly basis to provide an opportunity to 
raise new risks and also to review current 
risks to ensure the key risks continue to be 
identified and communicated through the 
appropriate channels. 

High Y This is within the current processes, the 
risks are reviewed monthly at 
team/directorate meetings as part of the 
Service Improvement planning framework. 

Immediate LH 

Risk Mitigation - Understanding and analysing the impact and of implementation of controls and other risk mitigation activity. 

7 As part of recommendation 3.2.1 risk 
owners should undertake a review of all 
controls and action plans to ensure the 
controls in place are relevant and effective 
to manage the risk and also all actions are 
up to date and assigned to an action 
owner. 

High Y This will be picked up as part of the 
current review of all risks. 

October 2011 LH 

Assurance - Directing assurance to provide comfort on how well risks are being managed. 

8 The Council should develop a formal 
assurance process in order to provide 
assurances through reporting channels that 
the controls in place to manage each risk 
are in place and working effectively.   

This assurance process should be included 
within the revised Risk Management 
Strategy. 

High Y The Risk Management Strategy will detail 
the assurance process.  This will be within 
current resources and cannot involve 
further dedicated resource.  It is likely that 
the Strategy will place the responsibility at 
SLB/COB level to provide assurances of 
regular reviews of risk. 

September 
2011 

LH 

P
age 22



HINCKLEY AND BOSWORTH BOROUGH COUNCIL         Internal Audit Progress Report – 31
st
 October 2011 

 

 

         17 

 

 

 

 

Monitoring and Reporting- Reporting of risk management to support decision making. 

9 The Council should ensure that the formal 
reporting structure is re-introduced to 
ensure risk owners have updated their risks 
and that management update and review 
these risks to provide the key committees 
and groups with relevant assurances. 

High Y See four and seven above. September 
2011 

LH 

10 All risks identified on papers to committees 
and groups should be linked back to the 
“TEN” system to ensure they are managed 
effectively by a risk owner. 

High Y Service managers and report authors will 
be advised that the risks in reports are 
reflected in the risk register on TEN. 

September 
2011 

LH 

P
age 23



HINCKLEY AND BOSWORTH BOROUGH COUNCIL         Internal Audit Progress Report – 31
st
 October 2011 

 

 

         18 

 

 

 

HEALTH AND SAFETY 

1.  EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

1.1 INTRODUCTION 

An audit of Health and Safety was undertaken as part of the approved internal audit periodic plan for 2011/12. The Council has in place a Corporate Health, Safety 
and Welfare Policy, which is supported by the Health, Safety and Welfare Statement that summarises the organisation’s responsibilities with regards to health and 
safety matters and the duties of all employees. All staff is given health and safety training as part of their corporate induction. Further specific health and safety 
training is given by the relevant department as required depending on the role carried out by the individual.  

Staff have access to the Health, Safety and Welfare Policy through the intranet. Updates to legislation, training and other health and safety related matters are 
communicated to staff through regular team meetings which are minuted. Examples of various team meetings and their minutes were viewed during the audit.  

Management are kept informed of health and safety issues in monthly service managers’ meetings and health and safety matters, including accident reporting are 
discussed at the Local Joint and Safety Panel meetings whose members include the Council’s Principal Safety, Health and Resilience Officer and representatives 
from employers, the trade union (UNISON), and the Corporate Operations Board. The Principal Safety, Health and Resilience Officer monitors compliance with the 
Health, Safety and Welfare Policy through annual site audits across the departmental areas. Also introduced at the depot have been spot check visits of the refuse 
crews.   

The audit was designed to assess the controls in place to manage the following objectives and risks: 

Objective 
To deliver assurance over the adequacy of internal controls within the 
health and safety system. 

Risk 
Serious breach of Health & Safety legislation. 

Failure to provide an adequate and safe working environment.  

1.2 CONCLUSION 

 

Taking account of the issues identified, the Council can take 
reasonable assurance that the controls upon which the 
organisation relies to manage this area are suitably designed, 
consistently applied and effective. However we have identified 
issues that, if not addressed, increase the likelihood of risk 
materialising in this area.  

 

P
age 24



HINCKLEY AND BOSWORTH BOROUGH COUNCIL         Internal Audit Progress Report – 31
st
 October 2011 

 

 

         19 

 

 

 

The above conclusions feeding into the overall assurance level are based on the evidence obtained during the review. The key findings from this review are as 
follows: 

Design of control framework 

� A recommendation was raised that visitors to the Middlefield Lane Depot should be provided with information regarding evacuation procedures.  

Application of and compliance with control framework 

� Recommendations made include the updating of the Health, Safety and Welfare policy, and Lone Working policy; ensuring up to date lists of Fire Marshalls 
and First Aiders are available on the intranet for all staff; mitigating actions on the risk register are updated with recent progress made; and DSE checklists 
should be completed on a regular basis.  

1.3 SCOPE OF THE REVIEW 

To evaluate the adequacy of risk management and control within the system and the extent to which controls have been applied, with a view to providing an opinion. 
Control activities are put in place to ensure that risks to the achievement of the organisation’s objectives are managed effectively.  When planning the audit, the 
following areas for review and limitations were agreed: 

Areas for consideration: 

� Comprehensive corporate Health and Safety policy and risk assessments. 

� Depot health and safety evaluation and mitigation measures. 

� Fire risk assessments are performed. 

� Health and Safety training courses. 

� Requirement for Service units to obtain Health & Safety procedures from Contractors.  

� Training programme for managers and development of competencies. 

� Assurance statement from managers regarding Health & Safety issues.  

� Approval and dissemination of corporate policy on lone working. 

Limitations to the scope of the audit: 

� We will undertake an assessment of the adequacy of aspects of the control framework and we will undertake limited testing to confirm its operation in practice.  

� Our work does not provide any guarantee against material errors, loss or fraud or provide an absolute assurance that material error, loss or fraud does not 
exist.  

The approach taken for this audit was a risk based audit. 

1.4 RECOMMENDATIONS SUMMARY 

The following tables highlight the number and categories of recommendations made.  The Action Plan at Section 2 details the specific recommendations made as 
well as agreed management actions to implement them. 

 

P
age 25



HINCKLEY AND BOSWORTH BOROUGH COUNCIL         Internal Audit Progress Report – 31
st
 October 2011 

 

 

         20 

 

 

 

Recommendations made during this audit: 

Our recommendations address the design and application of the control framework as follows: 

 

Priority 

High Medium Low 

Design of control framework 0 0 1 

Application of control framework 0 0 6 

Total 0 0 7 

The recommendations address the risks within the scope of the audit as set out below: 

 Priority 

Risk High Medium Low 

Serious breach of Health & Safety 
legislation. 

0 0 4 

Failure to provide an adequate and safe 
working environment.  

0 0 3 

Total 0 0 7 

 

1.5  ADDITIONAL FEEDBACK 

Good Practice Identified During the Audit 

Regular health and safety monitoring by management through the Local Joint Panel group. 

Health and safety is a standing agenda item at various team meetings held at the Middlefield Lane Depot.  

Proactive action taken following the identification of potential risks as seen in the recent assessment of office 
equipment at the Middlefield Lane Depot.  

P
age 26



HINCKLEY AND BOSWORTH BOROUGH COUNCIL         Internal Audit Progress Report – 31
st
 October 2011 

 

 

         21 

 

 

 

We have included some comparative data to benchmark the number of recommendations made, as shown in the table below. In the past year, we have undertaken 
a number of audits of a similar nature in the sector. 

Level of Assurance Percentage of Reviews Results of this Audit 

Green 0%  

Amber 100% � 

Red 0%  

   

Recommendations 
Average number in similar 

audits 
Number in this audit 

Recommendations made 5.5 7.0 

 

2. ACTION PLAN – No ‘High’ or ‘Medium’ Risk Recommendations were raised as part of this review. 

P
age 27



HINCKLEY AND BOSWORTH BOROUGH COUNCIL         Internal Audit Progress Report – 31
st
 October 2011 

 

 

         22 

 

 

 

PROJECT MANAGEMENT  

1.  EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

1.1    INTRODUCTION 

An audit of Project Management was undertaken as part of the approved internal audit periodic plan for 2011/12. 

We conducted an audit of project management methods and practices performed at the Council. We evaluated whether the Council’s project management 
procedures were adequate, consistent in approach and in compliance with Council corporate objectives.  During the course of the audit we looked at the following 
projects: 
 

� Hinckley Hub - The project revolves around relocating the Council offices from the current location at Argent’s Mead and Florence House sites to a new 
development called the Hinckley Hub. This was based on decision that the current Argents Mead offices are not “fit for purpose” and a capital expenditure of 
approximately £6m would be required to make them operationally viable over the long term.  

� Burbage Common - Capital improvement works at Burbage Common. The project has a budget of £274,000. 
� Richmond Park Play Area - This was a £72,000 project which arose due to the adoption of the Green Space Strategy (2005). The Strategy highlighted that 

there is a lack of high quality play provision for children and young people in the Borough, with both qualitative and quantitative deficiencies noted. The 
Council was committed to addressing this deficiency and to meeting the needs of children and young people by providing new and enhanced play 
opportunities in areas of need. On such area was Richmond Park.  

� Recycling Containers - The project aims for the provision of additional and replacement Recycling and Waste Containers. Current containers provided are 
approximately: 46,000 Black Bins, 38,000 Brown Bins, 28,000 Blue Boxes and 1,000 various containers to apartments and schools. There is an average 
replacement ratio of 3% of the total containers. 

 
Our review found that the project management methods and practices Council were generally adequate, and in line with the objectives of the Council. However 
discussions with staff members showed that staff members were not clear as to which set of project management parameters the Council was operating under. 
Since the last internal audit of project management in 2009, the Council’s Capital Forum has released new guidelines in this project, which include reference to the 
financial thresholds at which various project management requirements are applicable. These new guidelines were not formally approved by the Senior Leadership 
Board or Executive board.    

The audit was designed to assess the controls in place to manage the following objectives and risks: 

Objective 
To ensure that the Council manages projects in a consistent and 
coherent manner.  

Risk 
The Council does not manage projects in a clear, logical and 
consistent manner leading to inefficient and ineffective operations. 

 

P
age 28



HINCKLEY AND BOSWORTH BOROUGH COUNCIL         Internal Audit Progress Report – 31
st
 October 2011 

 

 

         23 

 

 

 

1.2 CONCLUSION 

 

Taking account of the issues identified, the Council can take 
reasonable assurance that the controls upon which the 
organisation relies to manage this area are suitably designed, 
consistently applied and effective.  

However, we have identified issues that, if not addressed, 
increase the likelihood of risk materialising in this area.  

 The above conclusions feeding into the overall assurance level are based on the evidence obtained during the review.  

 

The key findings from this review are as follows: 

Design of control framework 

� There are documented policies and procedures in place for the Council’s approach to Project Management. 

� There was some uncertainty amongst Project Managers regarding their roles and responsibilities in this area. 

� Monthly meetings take place between Project Managers and Line Managers to discuss project progress. 

Application of and compliance with control framework 

� Staff are not aware which project management procedures to apply. There are currently two versions in application. Procedures compiled during the Capital 
Forum meeting (November 2009) have not been formally approved by the Executive.  

� Stakeholder analysis was carried out for each project to ensure that key stakeholders are kept informed and decisions are made with their needs in mind.  

� We noted areas where the Council could further strengthen its project management methods and practices, including the establishment of effective tracking 
and oversight controls for monitoring performance, and the development of a common approach to project management to be applied to all projects. 

1.3 SCOPE OF THE REVIEW 

The objective of our audit was to evaluate the adequacy of risk management and control within the system and the extent to which controls have been applied, with 
a view to providing an opinion.  Control activities are put in place to ensure that risks to the achievement of the organisation’s objectives are managed effectively.  
When planning the audit, the following controls for review and limitations were agreed: 

Limitations to the scope of the audit: 

� We will undertake an assessment of the adequacy of aspects of the control framework and we will undertake limited testing to confirm its operation in practice. 

� Our work does not provide any guarantee against material errors, loss or fraud or provide an absolute assurance that material error, loss or fraud does not 
exist.  

The approach taken for this audit was a Risk-Based Audit. 

P
age 29



HINCKLEY AND BOSWORTH BOROUGH COUNCIL         Internal Audit Progress Report – 31
st
 October 2011 

 

 

         24 

 

 

 

1.4 RECOMMENDATIONS SUMMARY 

The following tables highlight the number and categories of recommendations made.  The Action Plan at Section 2 details the specific recommendations made as 
well as agreed management actions to implement them. 

Recommendations made during this audit: 

Our recommendations address the design and application of the control framework as follows: 

 

Priority 

High Medium Low 

Design of control framework 0 0 0 

Application of control framework 0 2 4 

Total 0 2 4 

The recommendations address the risks within the scope of the audit as set out below: 

 Priority 

Risk High Medium Low 

The Council does not manage projects in a 
clear, logical and consistent manner leading 
to inefficient and ineffective operations. 

0 2 4 

Total 0 2 4 

 

P
age 30



HINCKLEY AND BOSWORTH BOROUGH COUNCIL         Internal Audit Progress Report – 31
st
 October 2011 

 

 

         25 

 

 

 

1.5 ADDITIONAL FEEDBACK 

We have also made a suggestion where we have identified innovation or good practice at other organisations that Hinckley & Bosworth Borough Council may wish 
to consider: 

Good Practice Identified During the Audit 

Projects managed by qualified individuals who clearly demonstrate dedication to successfully deliver on their 
capital objectives. 

2 ACTION PLAN 

 
Ref 

Recommendation Categorisation Accepted 
(Y/N) 

Management Comment Implementation 
Date 

Manager 
Responsible 

1 Staff should be reminded that a consistent 
approach to Project Methodology should be 
followed at all times as detailed by the Council 
requirements and procedures. This should include 
ensuring that all relevant documents are 
developed and maintained.    

The Council should detail what approach and 
documents are required for the projects at the 
various financial thresholds detailed. This should 
be detailed in the project management guidance.  

The guidance for project management should 
make it clear what is expected of officers in 
relation to the use of the Prince2 methodology for 
the various project thresholds. The latest guidance 
and policy should be made available to all officers. 

Medium Y A standing item will be placed on the 
Capital Forum Agenda. 

 
 
 

November 
2011 

Michael 
Brymer P

age 31



HINCKLEY AND BOSWORTH BOROUGH COUNCIL         Internal Audit Progress Report – 31
st
 October 2011 

 

 

         26 

 

 

 

 

Ref Recommendation Categorisation Accepted 
(Y/N) 

Management Comment Implementation 
Date 

Manager 
Responsible 

2 The Council should ensure that the documented 
project management process includes a defined 
scope, schedule and cost at the earliest 
opportunity.   

This process should be applicable to all projects. 

Medium Y This information would be available if 
the correct project management 
forms were used.  

November 
2011 

All Managers 
responsible for 

projects 

 

 

P
age 32



HINCKLEY AND BOSWORTH BOROUGH COUNCIL         Internal Audit Progress Report – 31
st
 October 2011 

 

 

         27 

 

 

 

KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS 

1.  EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

1.1  INTRODUCTION 

An audit of Key Performance Indicators (KPIs) was undertaken as part of the approved internal audit periodic plan for 2011/12. After discussion with senior 
management, the audit focussed on six KPIs, and sought to ensure that these were being calculated correctly, and that they were being reported in line with the 
Council’s performance management system requirements.   

Hinckley and Bosworth Borough Council use the TEN system to record and monitor performance against its key performance indicators.  2011/12 KPI’s were 
included in the Service Improvement Plans. These were agreed at the Senior Leadership Board meeting on 17

th
 March 2011 and therefore the list of all performance 

measures the Council wishes to report against was also approved.  Targets for each of these are due to be formally agreed at the Joint Board meeting on 10
th
 

August 2011.  

The frequency of reporting depends on the indicator, and tends to be either monthly, quarterly or annually.  In the TEN system each KPI is given a ‘Collector’ and an 
‘Owner’, and is the responsibility of a Head of Service. Collection of KPIs into TEN is undertaken in line with the relevant frequency required. On a monthly basis the 
Performance and Improvement Officer reminds all Collectors, owners and Heads of Service of their requirement to submit outturns against their KPIs.   

We noted that NI191 (Residual household waste per household) and NI192 (Percentage of household waste sent for reuse, recycling and composting) were 
reported one month in arrears, although this is due to the Council’s reliance upon data reported by external organisations.  NI151 (Overall employment rate) data is 
taken from a NOMIS report detailing the employment rate between January 2010 and December 2010, so is always 6 months behind.  NI8 (Adult participation in 
sport & active recreation) is reported based on data from Sport England based on the period of October 2009 and October 2010, and is reported annually at 31

st
 

March.  However we found in all these cases reporting was based on the latest information available to the Council.   

In line with the Data Quality Management Policy and Performance Indicator Working Paper and Evidence Guidance, each Collector should maintain a file of 
supporting documentation detailing how their KPI was calculated so that this can be verified by Audit.  For the sample of six KPIs reviewed we were unable to 
confirm the data submitted in TEN to working papers in one instance.   

Through the TEN system KPI Collectors, owners and Heads of Service can review their performance against target, compare this to previous periods and also to the 
national average (where benchmarking data exists).  A dashboard report has been produced which allows owners to focus on poor performance so that justification 
can be provided when reported to the Senior Leadership Board and the Finance and Audit Services Select Committee.   

The audit was designed to assess the controls in place to manage the following objectives and risks: 

Objective 
To provide appropriate and timely information to management 
regarding on-going performance of key operational areas.   

Risk 
Performance Indicator information is insufficient, inaccurate, untimely 
or unnecessary.  

 

P
age 33



HINCKLEY AND BOSWORTH BOROUGH COUNCIL         Internal Audit Progress Report – 31
st
 October 2011 

 

 

         28 

 

 

 

1.2 CONCLUSION 

 

Taking account of the issues identified, the Council can take 
reasonable assurance that the controls upon which the 
organisation relies to manage this area are suitably designed, 
consistently applied and effective. However we have identified 
issues that, if not addressed, increase the likelihood of risk 
materialising in this area.  

 

The above conclusions feeding into the overall assurance level are based on the evidence obtained during the review. The key findings from this review are as 
follows: 

Effectiveness 

� The outturn of key performance indicators is reported through the TEN system of recording performance management information.  For the period of July we 
confirmed with the Performance and Improvement Officer that only one performance indicator had not been reported within the allotted timescale to enable 
reporting.   

Design of control framework 

� TEN is used to record all KPI’s from the Service Improvement Plans, and this allows each KPI to be reported in line with the specified frequency. Performance 
can also be reported against set targets and previous periods.   

Application of and compliance with control framework 

� Targets have not yet been formally agreed for the 2011/12 KPI’s.  

� Requirements for data Collectors, owners and Heads of Service are documented within the Data Quality Management Policy and Performance Indicator 
Working Paper and Evidence Guidance. However there have been a number of minor changes to actual working practices for 2011/12, which are not yet 
reflected in these documents.   

� For NI158 (Percentage of non-decent council homes) we were unable to verify the outturn submitted at 31
st
 March 2011 to the working papers provided.  We 

also confirmed that there was no procedural documentation detailing how the KPI is collated and calculated.   

� Training regarding performance management and KPIs has not been provided to Officers since February 2010. The Performance and Improvement Officer 
confirmed that an e-learning module will be developed for Data Quality Management to allow training to be undertaken at a time suitable to each Officer.   

 

 

 

 

P
age 34



HINCKLEY AND BOSWORTH BOROUGH COUNCIL         Internal Audit Progress Report – 31
st
 October 2011 

 

 

         29 

 

 

 

1.3 SCOPE OF THE REVIEW 

To evaluate the adequacy of risk management and control within the system and the extent to which controls have been applied, with a view to providing an opinion. 
Control activities are put in place to ensure that risks to the achievement of the organisation’s objectives are managed effectively.  When planning the audit, the 
following controls for review and limitations were agreed: 

 

Limitations to the scope of the audit: 

� We will undertake an assessment of the adequacy of aspects of the control framework and we will undertake limited testing to confirm its operation in practice.  

� The review will not comment on the adequacy of results within the performance management system, it will only evaluate the mechanisms around identifying, 
achievement and monitoring of the performance criteria.  

� Our work does not provide any guarantee against material errors, loss or fraud or provide an absolute assurance that material error, loss or fraud does not 
exist. 

The approach taken for this audit was a Risk-Based Audit. 

1.4 RECOMMENDATIONS SUMMARY 

The following tables highlight the number and categories of recommendations made.  The Action Plan at Section 2 details the specific recommendations made as 
well as agreed management actions to implement them. 

Recommendations made during this audit: 

Our recommendations address the design and application of the control framework as follows: 

 

Priority 

High Medium Low 

Design of control framework 0 0 0 

Application of control framework 0 2 4 

Total 0 2 4 

 

P
age 35



HINCKLEY AND BOSWORTH BOROUGH COUNCIL         Internal Audit Progress Report – 31
st
 October 2011 

 

 

         30 

 

 

 

The recommendations address the risks within the scope of the audit as set out below: 

 Priority 

Risk High Medium Low 

Performance Indicator information is 
insufficient, inaccurate, untimely or 
unnecessary.  

0 2 4 

Total 0 2 4 

Recommendations implemented since the previous audit in this area: 

Date of previous audit:   1 August 2011 

Assurance:  Fundamental Significant Merits Attention 

Number of recommendations made during 
previous audit 

0 0 1 

Number of recommendations implemented 0 0 1 

Recommendations not yet fully 
implemented: 

0 0 0 

1.5 ADDITIONAL FEEDBACK 

We have also made a suggestion where we have identified innovation or good practice at other organisations that Hinckley and Bosworth Borough Council may wish 
to consider: 

Suggestions Made During the Audit 

Consideration should be given to enabling the audit trail for performance management within 
TEN to show when and what was amended within the system. 

 

 

P
age 36



HINCKLEY AND BOSWORTH BOROUGH COUNCIL         Internal Audit Progress Report – 31
st
 October 2011 

 

 

         31 

 

 

 

2 ACTION PLAN 

  

Ref Recommendation Categorisation Accepted 
(Y/N) 

Management Comment Implementation 
Date 

Manager 
Responsible 

1 In future, targets should be established in a 
timelier manner to ensure that they are in place 
before the first stage of reporting at the end of 
April.   

Medium Y To be incorporated into Service Improvement 
Planning process (2012/15 cycle) 

October/Novem
ber 2011 

LH 

2 As per the Data Quality Policy, suitable 
working papers should be retained for NI158, 
to evidence and support the values reported 
within TEN.   

Medium Y Email sent to collector and Head of service on 
12 Aug to request compliance 

End September LH 

 P
age 37



HINCKLEY AND BOSWORTH BOROUGH COUNCIL         Internal Audit Progress Report – 31
st
 October 2011 

 

 

         32 

 

 

 

PLANNING 

1. EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

1.1 INTRODUCTION 

An audit of Planning was undertaken as part of the approved internal audit periodic plan for 2011/12. 

The Uniform system is used to open case files and record all information following the receipt of a planning application. All documents relating to applications are 

scanned into the Anite document imaging system which is linked to Uniform. Anite is also available in public access format, via the Councils website, for public 

viewing of documents relating to past and current applications.  

Forms are available for members of the public to submit planning applications; however electronic applications by the national system, the ‘Planning Portal’ are 

strongly encouraged.  Applications are entered into Uniform by a Planning Technician and cases allocated to Planning Officers based on Officer experience, 

speciality and geographical location. Applications are checked to ensure all required documents are present, the fee has been paid and that drawings are to scale. 

After this validation process, the statutory timeframe in which a decision should be reached is commenced.  

For ‘major’ applications, the department has 13 weeks to reach a decision. For minor and ‘other’ applications, eight weeks are permitted. The target due date is 

automatically calculated by the Uniform system to prevent errors. Depending on the categorisation, complexity and public interest in the case, cases are decided by 

either the Planning Committee, who meet four-weekly, or by Delegated Officers within the Planning department. The Planning Committee is provided with 

recommendations from the Case Officer, prior to the meeting, to provide technical recommendations. Applications which exceed the statutory time frame for a 

decision are reported to the Head of Planning, with the reason for delay explained. To date in 2011/12, 377 applications have been received.  

Applicants have the right to appeal against refused decisions. Opening case letters are received from the Planning Inspectorate, advising of any documents which 

the Council must provide and the key dates which must be met. Review of a sample of appeals found that key dates had been met, and in all but one case, the 

Inspectorate agreed with the original application decision and dismissed the appeal. To date in 2011/12, 14 appeals have been received.  

The volume and type of applications (major/minor/other) are reported using the Councils performance monitoring software on a monthly basis. Quarterly statistics 

are submitted with regards appeals received. Quarterly statistics are also reported to the Department for Communities and Local Government (DCLG).  

The audit was designed to assess the controls in place to manage the following objectives and risks: 

Objective 
To ensure that all planning decisions within the Council are taken with 
due regard to all external and internal strategies, policies, 
requirements and legislation.  

Risk 
Planning decisions are not taken in accordance with the statutory 
provision of S.38(6) of the Planning and Compulsory Act 2004. 

P
age 38



HINCKLEY AND BOSWORTH BOROUGH COUNCIL         Internal Audit Progress Report – 31
st
 October 2011 

 

 

         33 

 

 

 

1.2 CONCLUSION 

 

Taking account of the issues identified, the Council can take 
substantial assurance that the controls upon which the 
organisation relies to manage this risk are suitably designed, 
consistently applied and effective. 

 

The above conclusions feeding into the overall assurance level are based on the evidence obtained during the review. The key findings from this review are as 
follows: 

 

 Design of control framework 

� The responsibilities of the Planning Committee with regards to making application decisions are clearly documented within the Scheme of Delegation. 
However, the assigned responsibility for signing off planning application decisions which has been delegated to key staff is not documented within the Councils 
Scheme of Delegation.  

� The planning procedure has yet to be fully documented due to continued uncertainty over future legislative changes. 

 

Application of and compliance with control framework 

� For three out of the 20 applications sampled the decision had been reached subsequent to the statutory timeframe of either eight or 13 weeks. However, from 
our review we concluded that these delays were out of the control of planning staff and due to delays caused by the applicant. 

� An explanatory report is sent to the Head of Planning for all overdue decisions.  

� Planning Committee meetings are held every four weeks and are minuted to record decisions made. 

� Regular performance monitoring is in place, both internally through the Tens monitoring software and externally to the Department of Communities and Local 
Government (DCLG). 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 39



HINCKLEY AND BOSWORTH BOROUGH COUNCIL         Internal Audit Progress Report – 31
st
 October 2011 

 

 

         34 

 

 

 

1.3 SCOPE OF THE REVIEW 

To evaluate the adequacy of risk management and control within the system and the extent to which controls have been applied, with a view to providing an opinion. 
Control activities are put in place to ensure that risks to the achievement of the organisation’s objectives are managed effectively.  When planning the audit, the 
following limitations were agreed: 

 Limitations to the scope of the audit: 

� We will undertake an assessment of the adequacy of aspects of the control framework and we will undertake limited testing to confirm its operation in practice.  

� Our work does not provide any guarantee against material errors, loss or fraud or provide an absolute assurance that material error, loss or fraud does not 
exist.  

� The enforcement of planning decisions is not included in this review as a separate audit of Planning Enforcement was undertaken in 2011/12.   

The approach taken for this audit was a Risk-Based Audit. 

1.4 RECOMMENDATIONS SUMMARY 

The following tables highlight the number and categories of recommendations made.  The Action Plan at Section 2 details the specific recommendations made as 
well as agreed management actions to implement them. 

Recommendations made during this audit: 

Our recommendations address the design and application of the control framework as follows: 

 

Priority 

High Medium Low 

Design of control framework 0 0 0 

Application of control framework 0 1 1 

Total 0 1 1 

 

P
age 40



HINCKLEY AND BOSWORTH BOROUGH COUNCIL         Internal Audit Progress Report – 31
st
 October 2011 

 

 

         35 

 

 

 

The recommendations address the risks within the scope of the audit as set out below: 

 Priority 

Risk High Medium Low 

Planning decisions are not taken in 
accordance with the statutory provision 
of S.38(6) of the Planning and 
Compulsory Act 2004. 

0 1 1 

Total 0 1 1 

 

1.5 ADDITIONAL FEEDBACK 

We have included some comparative data to benchmark the number of recommendations made, as shown in the table below. In the past year, we have undertaken 
a number of audits of a similar nature in the sector. 

Level of Assurance Percentage of Reviews Results of this Audit 

Green 75% X 

Amber 25%  

Red 0%  

   

Recommendations 
Average number in similar 

audits 
Number in this audit 

Recommendations made 3.75 2 

  

P
age 41



HINCKLEY AND BOSWORTH BOROUGH COUNCIL         Internal Audit Progress Report – 31
st
 October 2011 

 

 

         36 

 

 

 

2 ACTION PLAN 

 
Ref 

Recommendation Categorisation Accepted 
(Y/N) 

Management Comment Implementation Date Manager 
Responsible 

1 

 

The delegated responsibility of signing 
off application decisions should be 
formally documented to ensure all 
decisions are made by approved 
Officers of the Council. This assigned 
responsibility should be documented 
within the Scheme of Delegation.  

Medium Y This is being presented formally to the 
Full Council on 25th October 2011 

25
th
 October Simon Wood 

 

P
age 42



HINCKLEY AND BOSWORTH BOROUGH COUNCIL         Internal Audit Progress Report – 31
st
 October 2011 

 

 

         37 

 

 

 

HOUSING ALLOCATIONS AND VOIDS 

1. EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

1.1 INTRODUCTION 

An audit of Housing Allocations and Voids was undertaken as part of the approved internal audit periodic plan for 2011/12. 

The Council manages approximately 3,425 properties. At the time of the audit approximately 60 were available to let and 32 were classed as void properties. In 
March 2011, the methodology behind the letting process was changed to a Choice Based Letting (CBL) process. Previously, applicants for housing were scored and 
held on a waiting list and properties were offered to those at the top of the list. Now applicants housing needs are assessed and they placed on one of four letting 
bands based on their circumstances. 

Properties available for letting are advertised weekly on the CBL website. Applicants can then bid on properties they are interested in. 

The Council are in the process of bringing Housing Repairs and therefore work on void properties back in house. This is set to occur on 29 September 2011 when 
the contractor Willmott Dixon will cease to carry out works. At the time of the review, the Housing Register contained approximately 1,295 applicants actively seeking 
accommodation.  

The audit was designed to assess the controls in place to manage the following objectives and risks: 

Objective 
To ensure that Council properties are utilised effectively for housing 
applicants who meet proscribed criteria as per Council policies and 
procedures and in line with statutory requirements.  

Risk 

Housing waiting list not up to date.  

Allocations not made in line with policy.  

Failure to limit housing voids resulting in rent loss. 

1.2 CONCLUSION 

 

Taking account of the issues identified, the Council can take 
substantial assurance that the controls upon which the 
organisation relies to manage this risk are suitably designed, 
consistently applied and effective. 

 

 The above conclusions feeding into the overall assurance level are based on the evidence obtained during the review.  

 

P
age 43



HINCKLEY AND BOSWORTH BOROUGH COUNCIL         Internal Audit Progress Report – 31
st
 October 2011 

 

 

         38 

 

 

 

The key findings from this review are as follows: 

Effectiveness 

� Of the 3,425 properties that the Council are responsible for only 0.9% are void properties.  

Design of control framework 

� There is a Housing Allocations Policy in place as well as a scheme guide for the Choice Based Lettings process.  

� Regular meetings are held to discuss void properties and the action that is to be taken going forward. 

� Where attempts to obtain identity documents for applicants have not succeeded, evidence is not retained. 

� There is no target in place for the turnaround time of void properties. . There are 3 KPI Targets in place for the Responsive Repairs Contract? (see attached) 

Application of and compliance with control framework 

� All prospective tenants complete and sign a Choice Based Lettings Scheme application form. 

� Signed tenancy agreements are in place for housed tenants. 

� During the sign up process a checklist is completed and signed by both the tenant and the Allocations Officer. The checklist ensures that the tenant is aware of 
utility suppliers, the importance of paying the rent on time, and if they have any difficulty paying the rent then the Council should be contacted immediately. 

1.3  SCOPE OF THE REVIEW 

To evaluate the adequacy of risk management and control within the system and the extent to which controls have been applied, with a view to providing an opinion. 
Control activities are put in place to ensure that risks to the achievement of the organisation’s objectives are managed effectively.  When planning the audit, the 
following limitations were agreed: 

Limitations to the scope of the audit: 

� We will undertake an assessment of the adequacy of aspects of the control framework and we will undertake limited testing to confirm its operation in practice.  

� Our work does not provide any guarantee against material errors, loss or fraud or provide an absolute assurance that material error, loss or fraud does not 
exist.  

The approach taken for this audit was a Risk-Based Audit. 

1.4 RECOMMENDATIONS SUMMARY 

The following tables highlight the number and categories of recommendations made.  The Action Plan at Section 2 details the specific recommendations made as 
well as agreed management actions to implement them. 

P
age 44



HINCKLEY AND BOSWORTH BOROUGH COUNCIL         Internal Audit Progress Report – 31
st
 October 2011 

 

 

         39 

 

 

 

Recommendations made during this audit: 

Our recommendations address the design and application of the control framework as follows: 

 

Priority 

High Medium Low 

Design of control framework 0 0 0 

Application of control framework 0 2 2 

Total 0 2 2 

The recommendations address the risks within the scope of the audit as set out below: 

 Priority 

Risk High Medium Low 

Housing waiting list not up to date.  0 0 0 

Allocations not made in line with policy.  0 0 1 

Failure to limit housing voids resulting in rent 
loss. 

0 0 1 

Total 0 0 2 

 

2.  ACTION PLAN – No ‘High’ or ‘Medium’ Risk Recommendations were raised as part of this review. 

 

 

P
age 45



HINCKLEY AND BOSWORTH BOROUGH COUNCIL         Internal Audit Progress Report – 31
st
 October 2011 

 

 

         40 

 

 

 

HOMELESSNESS 

1 EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

1.1 INTRODUCTION 

An audit of Homelessness was undertaken as part of the approved internal audit periodic plan for 2011/12. 

The Council has the responsibility and commitment to aid the Borough’s citizens from becoming homeless. The Housing Options Team consists of a Housing Options 
Manager and two Housing Options Officers who deal with a number of complex cases on a daily basis. Due to the economic climate the Housing Options Team has 
witnessed an increase in information requests and requests for advice and assistance from members of the public, and an increase in full declaration cases. There is 
also pressure on the Housing Options Team to deal with the cases appropriately to limit the reputational risk to Council. Within this financial year till the end of August 
there were 408 Advice and Assistance cases, of which 64 were declaration cases.     

The Orchard system is used throughout the Housing service area within the Council however the Housing Options Team have only recently started to utilise the 
system. The Housing Options Team retain manual files and documentation through from Advice and Assistance to the Declaration stage to the Termination of 
Tenancy.  

When an applicant requires help, an Advice and Assistance application form is completed. The applicant is interviewed to understand their situation and establish 
possible solutions to their problem. The applicant may be provided with a bond from the Prevention Fund to aid with any rent arrears or other small payments up to the 
value of £500 to prevent them from becoming homeless. The bond is then paid back by the applicant over an agreed length of time. If the applicant’s homelessness 
cannot be prevented, then a homelessness declaration is completed with the Housing Options Officer. In order for an applicant to be eligible for temporary 
accommodation, they must fulfil the five specific criteria’s as a statutory requirement under the Homelessness Act 2002. Once these criteria have been fulfilled the 
applicant is notified via letter and temporary accommodation is provided. The Council provides applicants with accommodation within hostels however under special 
circumstances the Council can provide bed and breakfasts. The applicants are required to pay a contribution for the temporary accommodation if this does not occur 
the applicants forfeit their accommodation.   

The audit was designed to assess the controls in place to manage the following objectives and risks: 

Objective 

To deal with homeless applicants and the provision of 
temporary accommodation for the homeless within the Borough 
in line with Council strategic aims and relevant statutory 
legislation. 

Risk 
The Homeless are not dealt with in an appropriate manner and 
in line with Council strategy or statutory legislation. 

 

P
age 46



HINCKLEY AND BOSWORTH BOROUGH COUNCIL         Internal Audit Progress Report – 31
st
 October 2011 

 

 

         41 

 

 

 

1.2 CONCLUSION 

 

Taking account of the issues identified, the Council can take 
reasonable assurance that the controls upon which the 
organisation relies to manage this risk are suitably designed, 
consistently applied and effective. 

However we have identified issues that, if not addressed, 
increase the likelihood of the risk materialising. 

 The above conclusions feeding into the overall assurance level are based on the evidence obtained during the review. The key findings from this review are as 
follows: 

Design of control framework 

� There are policies and procedures in place for this area; however updates are required, as out of date statistics are currently included.  

� A review of the Orchard system is required to ensure the system is utilised to its full capacity and efficiently for this area. In addition processes should be 
modified to suit the application of the Orchard system such as the application form.   

 

Application of and compliance with control framework 

� Testing was completed following the process through from the applicant requesting advice and assistance, reviewing declarations completed, through to the 
termination of the tenancy. Through testing, it was not always possible to find all information within the manual folders.   

� Monthly meetings are held with the Senior Accountant to discuss budgetary movements or discrepancies. It is also an opportunity to discuss whether 
additional budget may be required or any actions are required to ensure expenditure is within the budgeted amount.  

� On a monthly basis the Housing Options Manager views all Advice and Assistance claims to ensure that the correct decision has been made. It was confirmed 
that any other viable options or decisions that could have been made are discussed with the Housing Options Officers on a one to one basis as a form of on-
going training.   

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 47



HINCKLEY AND BOSWORTH BOROUGH COUNCIL         Internal Audit Progress Report – 31
st
 October 2011 

 

 

         42 

 

 

 

1.3 SCOPE OF REVIEW 

The objective of our audit was to evaluate the adequacy of risk management and control within the system and the extent to which controls have been applied, with 
a view to providing an opinion.  Control activities are put in place to ensure that risks to the achievement of the organisation’s objectives are managed effectively.  
When planning the audit, the following controls for review and limitations were agreed: 

Limitations to the scope of the audit: 

� We will undertake an assessment of the adequacy of aspects of the control framework and we will undertake limited testing to confirm its operation in practice. 

�  Our work does not provide any guarantee against material errors, loss or fraud or provide an absolute assurance that material error, loss or fraud does not 
exist. 

The approach taken for this audit was a Risk-Based Audit. 

1.4 RECOMMENDATIONS SUMMARY 

The following tables highlight the number and categories of recommendations made.  The Action Plan at Section 2 details the specific recommendations made as 
well as agreed management actions to implement them. 

Recommendations made during this audit: 

Our recommendations address the design and application of the control framework as follows: 

 

Priority 

High Medium Low 

Design of control framework 0 0 0 

Application of control framework 0 3 4 

Total 0 3 4 

 

 

 

P
age 48



HINCKLEY AND BOSWORTH BOROUGH COUNCIL         Internal Audit Progress Report – 31
st
 October 2011 

 

 

         43 

 

 

 

The recommendations address the risks within the scope of the audit as set out below: 

 Priority 

Risk High Medium Low 

The Homeless are not dealt with in an 
appropriate manner and in line with Council 
strategy or statutory legislation. 

0 3 4 

Total 0 3 4 

Recommendations implemented since the previous audit in this area: 

Date of previous audit:   July 2009 

Assurance:  Fundamental Significant Merits Attention 

Number of recommendations made during 
previous audit 

0 0 4 

Number of recommendations implemented 0 0 3 

Recommendations not yet fully 
implemented: 

0 0 1 

During the previous audit four merits attention recommendations were raised. These four recommendations related to the Homelessness Strategy, the Frontline 
Prevention Fund Policy, the file Checklist and monitoring of performance codes. It can be confirmed through our testing and discussions during this review that three 
recommendations had been implemented and one had not been implemented. The recommendation which was not implemented related to the Frontline Prevention 
Fund Policy; we have re-iterated the recommendation.    

1.5  ADDITIONAL FEEDBACK 

We have also made a suggestion where we have identified innovation or good practice at other organisations that Hinckley and Bosworth Borough Council may wish 
to consider: 

Suggestions Made During the Audit 

In addition to the recommendation made relating to the review of policies we would suggest that in line with 
good practice all Homelessness Policies should have version control and a review date stated within the 
policy.   

P
age 49



HINCKLEY AND BOSWORTH BOROUGH COUNCIL         Internal Audit Progress Report – 31
st
 October 2011 

 

 

         44 

 

 

 

2 ACTION PLAN 

  Recommendation Categorisation Accepted 
(Y/N) 

Management Comment Implementation 
Date 

Manager 
Responsible 

1 The Housing Options Officers should 
ensure that for all applicants a decision 
form is completed and retained within the 
applicant’s folder.   

Medium Y Officer’s will be reminded of the requirement and 
checks undertaken 

 

November 
2011 

Jo Wykes 

2 The Council should review and amend the 
letters provided to applicants in regards to 
their application.  Decision Letters should 
be concise and provide all the relevant 
information and all the statutory 
requirements.    

Medium Y Letters will be reviewed and training undertaken 
with Officers 

January 2012 Jo Wykes 

3 The Council should ensure there is a review 
of the effectiveness of the Orchard system 
for the Homelessness function. 

Medium Y 

 

 

A review of the Orchard system was planned. 

 

. 

January 2012 Jo Wykes 

 

P
age 50



HINCKLEY AND BOSWORTH BOROUGH COUNCIL         Internal Audit Progress Report – 31
st
 October 2011 

 

 

         45 

 

 

 

TREASURY MANAGEMENT 

1  EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

1.1  INTRODUCTION 

An audit of Treasury Management was undertaken as part of the approved internal audit periodic plan for 2011/12. 

The audit was designed to ensure the Council have funds available when needed to meet business requirements and to ensure that financial assets of the Council 
are safeguarded and not placed at excess risk. During the course of the audit, we ensured that Treasury Management staff have documented procedures available 
to them, cash flow forecasts are produced and reviewed, and that major loan and investment opportunities are identified.  

The Treasury Management function is an integral part of the financial management of the Council’s affairs. The overall responsibility of the Treasury Management 
function resides with the Deputy Chief Executive, Corporate Direction with the day to day operational duties delegated to the Assistant Accountant. Statutory 
requirements and the CIPFA Code of Practice on Treasury Management strictly regulate the Council’s Treasury Management activities. The Council receive 
independent financial advice from Sector Financial Consultants. The investment and borrowing strategies were approved by the Council at the commencement of 
the financial year. The total value of investments as at 31 August 2011 was £6,670,000 and the total borrowings for the same date was £4,300,000. 

There is currently great uncertainty over the future of the economy and over the future of interest rates which affect the Council’s borrowing activities and increases 
the risks associated with Treasury Management activities. As a result, the Council have adopted a risk adverse strategy and have resorted to investing with safer 
investment houses such as Building Societies. However, this has resulted in lower risk investments offering lower returns. To demonstrate, in the 2007/8 financial 
year the Council was earning interest in excess of £1 million. This has been reduced to just under £100,000 in 2010/11. 

The audit was designed to assess the controls in place to manage the following objectives and risks: 

Objective 
To ensure that funds are available when needed to meet business 
requirements and those financial assets of the Council are 
safeguarded and not placed at risk. 

Risk 
Insufficient cash available to meet liabilities due to inefficient or 
ineffective management of funds. 

1.2 CONCLUSION 

 

Taking account of the issues identified, the Council can take 
substantial assurance that the controls upon which the 
organisation relies to manage this risk are suitably designed, 
consistently applied and effective. 

P
age 51



HINCKLEY AND BOSWORTH BOROUGH COUNCIL         Internal Audit Progress Report – 31
st
 October 2011 

 

 

         46 

 

 

 

 

The above conclusions feeding into the overall assurance level are based on the evidence obtained during the review.  

 

The key findings from this review are as follows: 

Effectiveness 

� The Council managed to achieve an average return of 1.49% on internally managed funds during 2009/10. 

 

Design of control framework 

� There is adequate segregation of duties within the day to day operations of the Treasury Management activities. 

� Treasury Management staff were found to be unaware of the requirements of the Non-Investment Product Code. 

Application of and compliance with control framework 

� Reconciliations relating to investments, interest rates and borrowing are adequately and regularly carried out. 

� Meetings between senior staff with Treasury management responsibilities were not being documented.  

 

1.3 SCOPE OF THE REVIEW 

To evaluate the adequacy of risk management and control within the system and the extent to which controls have been applied, with a view to providing an opinion. 
Control activities are put in place to ensure that risks to the achievement of the organisation’s objectives are managed effectively.  When planning the audit, the 
following controls for review and limitations were agreed: 

Limitations to the scope of the audit: 

� Our review does not provide an opinion on the appropriateness or security of the Council’s investments or banking deposits, or of the appropriateness of its 
investment policies. 

� We will undertake an assessment of the adequacy of aspects of the control framework and we will undertake limited testing to confirm its operation in practice.  

� Our work does not provide any guarantee against material errors, loss or fraud or provide an absolute assurance that material error, loss or fraud does not 
exist.  

� Our audit does not seek to replicate advice provided by your treasury management or investments advisor.  

The approach taken for this audit was a Risk-Based Audit. 

 

 

 

P
age 52



HINCKLEY AND BOSWORTH BOROUGH COUNCIL         Internal Audit Progress Report – 31
st
 October 2011 

 

 

         47 

 

 

 

1.4 RECOMMENDATIONS SUMMARY 

The following tables highlight the number and categories of recommendations made.  The Action Plan at Section 2 details the specific recommendations made as 
well as agreed management actions to implement them. 

Recommendations made during this audit: 

Our recommendations address the design and application of the control framework as follows: 

 

Priority 

High Medium Low 

Design of control framework 0 0 3 

Application of control framework 0 0 2 

Total 0 0 5 

The recommendations address the risks within the scope of the audit as set out below: 

 Priority 

Risk High Medium Low 

Insufficient cash available to meet liabilities 
due to inefficient or ineffective management 
of funds. 

0 0 5 

Total 0 0 5 

 

2.  ACTION PLAN – No ‘High’ or ‘Medium’ Risk Recommendations were raised as part of this review. 

P
age 53



HINCKLEY AND BOSWORTH BOROUGH COUNCIL         Internal Audit Progress Report – 31
st
 October 2011 

 

 

         48 

 

 

 

IT STRATEGY REVIEW 

1   EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

1.1    INTRODUCTION 

This audit of the IT Strategy was undertaken as part of the approved internal audit periodic plan for 2011/12. 

The IT Strategy has been developed in line with the Council's Corporate Plan 2010 - 2015, and in line with the on-going requirements of individual service areas 
across the Council. 

The IT Strategy document was initially set out to be a five year plan, with the document originally dating back to 2005. However, changes with regards to the location 
of the Council's IT department going forward is currently being negotiated, as such, annual updates are being made to the existing IT Strategy document, until the 
location has been finalised. 

The decision to annually revise the existing IT Strategy document has been agreed by the Strategic Leadership Board (SLB) and Corporate Operations Board 
(COB) within the Council. 

The IT Strategy is structured in a way that it defines within a formal roadmap, the agreed actions to be completed with the lead contact and completion dates next to 
each activity. An agile and flexible approach has been adopted as part of the IT Strategy, in order to allow for the IT department to respond to the on-going needs of 
individual departments which may not have been considered or included as part of the annual Service Improvement Plan (SIP) process. 

Progress against implementation of the IT Strategy roadmap is reported back into the Corporate Direction Management Team (CDMT) on a monthly basis. 
Representatives from the CDMT then report by exception updates on implementation of the IT Strategy into the SLB and COB. 

The audit was designed to assess the controls in place to manage the following objectives and risks: 

Objective 
An appropriate IT strategy has been documented and procedures are 
in place to oversee its implementation. 

Risk 

IT developments are uncoordinated, unplanned and/or incompatible 
with existing systems; 

IT systems and infrastructure do not meet the Council’s needs; and 

The goals of the IT strategy are not achieved and the organisation 
fails to achieve its objectives. 

 

 

 

P
age 54



HINCKLEY AND BOSWORTH BOROUGH COUNCIL         Internal Audit Progress Report – 31
st
 October 2011 

 

 

         49 

 

 

 

1.2 CONCLUSION 

 

Taking account of the issues identified, the Council can take 
substantial assurance that the controls upon which Hinckley & 
Bosworth Borough Council relies to manage this area is suitably 
designed and consistently applied. 

 

The above conclusions feeding into the overall assurance level are based on the evidence obtained during the review.  

 

The key findings from this review are as follows: 

 

Design of control framework 

 

We have found the following well-designed control. 

� The ICT Manager regularly attends the Leicestershire Council's IT Manager's meeting to understand what other strategies are being used at other Councils. In 
addition, the ICT Manager also uses SOCITM (Society of Information Technology Management) to develop the Councils ICT Strategy. 

 

Application of and compliance with control framework 

 

We have identified the following examples of consistently applied controls: 

� The IT Strategy had been approved by the E-Government Scrutiny Panel on the 8
th
 September 2005 and the ICT Council on the 13

th
 September 2005. A 

follow up approval of the IT Strategy took place on 9th October 2006 by the E-Government Scrutiny Panel and this was confirmed by review of the minute of 
meetings. 

� Key stakeholders within the Council and other external interested parties have been consulted regularly as part of the IT Strategy development process and 
this was confirmed by review of the IT ‘Service Improvement Plan (SIP)’ as well as information being retrieved from other department Service Improvement 
Plans. 

� Responsibility for developing the IT Strategy plan has been assigned to appropriate staff within the Council and this was confirmed by review of the IT 
Strategy, section 5 of the plan outlines the ICT Manager’s responsibilities of developing the plan. In addition, input from other key departments is also involved 
in formulating the IT Strategy plan. 

� The responsibility of implementing the IT Strategy plan has been clearly assigned to the ICT Manager and this was confirmed by review of the ‘Business 
Delivery Plan’ (roadmap), however, activities are distributed to other members of IT staff, which are also clearly assigned within the ‘Business Delivery Plan’ 
(roadmap). 

P
age 55



HINCKLEY AND BOSWORTH BOROUGH COUNCIL         Internal Audit Progress Report – 31
st
 October 2011 

 

 

         50 

 

 

 

� Timescales for delivering the IT Strategy have been outlined within a roadmap. In addition, progress against the roadmap is reviewed on an on-going basis to 
ensure that targets are met and this was confirmed by review of the ‘Business Delivery Plan’ (roadmap) which outlined the timescales for activities to be 
completed by HBBC IT staff. Each activity within the roadmap documents a reference number, outcome, the assigned member of staff and a target date. The 
IT 'Service Improvement Plan' documents that any delays to projects are notified to management during the monthly meetings with CDMT, which can then be 
discussed at COB and SLB level. In addition, management are able to view the ‘Service Improvement Plans’ for IT at any time to identify issues and/or delays. 

� Progress made towards delivering the IT Strategy is regularly reported to management and this was confirmed by review of minute of meetings held with the 
CDMT on a monthly basis. The CDMT report to the Corporate Operations Board (COB) and the Strategic Leadership Board (SLB) by exception only. 

We have made two Low category recommendations relating to the following: 

� The development of the IT Strategy document has been based on an agile and flexible approach, in order to accommodate for the on-going demands of the 
individual Council departments. This information is not directly reflected within the IT Strategy. Without the agreed approach for development and 
implementation of the IT Strategy being included within the IT Strategy document, this can result in management within the Council not being clearly made 
aware of the factors impacting the development and implementation of the IT Strategy. 

� The Council has established an IT strategy; however, the strategy references activities from 2008/09 which are no longer valid. Failure to review and maintain 
the Business Continuity Plan and the IT Strategy plan on an annual basis provides an increased risk that the plan and/or strategy becomes out-dated if it is not 
reviewed frequently. In addition, there is a risk that the IT Strategy may become ineffective if it is not formally approved and adopted by Council on an annual 
basis. 

1.3 SCOPE OF THE REVIEW 

To evaluate the adequacy of risk management and control within this area and the extent to which controls have been applied, with a view to providing an opinion. 
Control activities are put in place to ensure that risks to the achievement of Hinckley & Bosworth Borough Council’s objectives are managed effectively.  When 
planning the audit, the following areas for consideration and limitations were agreed: 

 Areas that this audit focused on: 

� Processes followed to develop the IT Strategy; 

� Roles and responsibilities in developing and implementing the IT Strategy; 

� Procedures in place for the management and monitoring of the implementation of the IT Strategy; 

� Alignment of the IT Strategy with the Council’s Business plans; and 

� Effectiveness of delivering of the IT Strategy against the roadmap. 

Limitations to the scope of the audit: 

� This audit reviewed and verified the processes and procedures in place to manage and monitor the IT Strategy, and not critically assessed the contents of the 
documentation. 

� Our work does not provide any guarantee against material errors, loss or fraud or provide an absolute assurance that material error, loss or fraud does not 
exist. 

The approach taken for this audit was a key controls audit. 

P
age 56



HINCKLEY AND BOSWORTH BOROUGH COUNCIL         Internal Audit Progress Report – 31
st
 October 2011 

 

 

         51 

 

 

 

1.4  RECOMMENDATIONS SUMMARY 

The following tables highlight the number and categories of recommendations made.  The Action Plan at Section 2 details the specific recommendations made as 
well as agreed management actions to implement them. 

Recommendations made during this audit: 

Our recommendations address the design and application of the control framework as follows: 

 

Priority 

High Medium Low 

Design of control framework 0 0 0 

Application of control framework 0 0 2 

Total 0 0 2 

The recommendations address the risks within the scope of the audit as set out below: 

 Priority 

Risk High Medium Low 

IT developments are uncoordinated, 
unplanned and/or incompatible with existing 
systems; 

0 0 2 

IT systems and infrastructure do not meet 
the Council’s needs; 

0 0 0 

The goals of the IT strategy are not 
achieved and the organisation fails to 
achieve its objectives; and 

0 0 0 

Total 0 0 2 

2.  ACTION PLAN – No ‘High’ or ‘Medium’ Risk Recommendations were raised as part of this review. 

 

P
age 57



P
age 58

T
his page is intentionally left blank



 

-  - 

52

REPORT NO FAP17 
 
 FINANCE, AUDIT AND PERFORMANCE SELECT COMMITTEE – 31 OCTOBER 
2011 
 
REPORT OF DEPUTY CHIEF EXECUTIVE (CORPORATE DIRECTION) 
RE: TREASURY MANAGEMENT ACTIVITY HALF YEAR TO 30 SEPTEMBER 2011 
 
 
1. PURPOSE OF REPORT 
 

To inform the Select Committee of the Council’s Treasury Management activity 
during the first half of 2011/12. 

  
2. RECOMMENDATION 
 
 That the Select Committee note the report  
 
3. BACKGROUND TO THE REPORT 
 
 At its meeting in August 2011 the Council approved the Council’s Treasury 

Management Policy for the year 2011/12 and delegated the oversight of the 
execution of the Policy to the Select Committee. 

 
 This report sets out the Treasury Management activities for the first six months of 

2011/12 and shows that they are in line with the limits set out in the Policy. 
 
 Treasury Management covers two main areas 
 
 1. The management of day to day cash flows by way of short term investing and 

borrowing. Longer term investment opportunities may arise depending on cash 
flow requirements. 

 
 2. Management of the Council’s Long term debt portfolio which is used to finance 

capital expenditure that cannot be immediately funded by internal resources (e.g. 
by Capital Receipts) 

 
 Economic Background 
 

The first half of financial year 2011/12 has seen a continuation of the longest 
period of consistently low interest rates in history. This together with continuing 
uncertainty in the money markets, including the financial stability of banks and 
other institutions and the Sovereign debt crisis in parts of the EU has had an 
impact on Treasury operations.  
 
Whilst it is generally accepted that the next move in interest rates will be upwards 
there is no real consensus in the market as to when that movement will take 
place. Given the current economic situation it would appear to be unlikely that 
rates will show any appreciable increase until at least the start of 2013. 

Agenda Item 5

Page 59



 

-  - 

53

 
 This particularly impacts on the availability and choice of investment 
counterparties. These have become more restricted in recent years both in terms 
of numbers of available to invest with, the amount that can be invested with a 
single counterparty and the length of time an investment can be made.  
 
In the present climate it is considered to be imprudent to invest for an extended 
period of time for the following reasons:-  
 
1. Interest rates may increase and therefore it would be unwise to lock the 
investment in for too long so that it is not possible to take advantage of 
increasing rates when they occur 
 
2. In a volatile market the financial strength of a counterparty can change at fairly 
short notice and therefore to invest for shorter periods reduces the Council’s risk 
exposure. 
 
To invest with better quality counterparties for shorter periods does reduce the 
Council’s exposure to risk and uncertainty but does mean that investment yields 
are reduced. 
 
Investment Activity 
 
The Council’s investment criteria are 
 

• Banks 1 - Good Credit Quality – the Council will only use banks which: 

i. Are UK banks; and/or 

ii. Are non-UK and domiciled in a country which has a minimum 
Sovereign long term rating of AAA 

And have, as a minimum, the following Fitch, Moody’s and Standard and 
Poors credit ratings (where rated): 

i. Short Term – F1  

ii. Long Term – A 

iii. Individual / Financial Strength – C (Fitch / Moody’s only) 

iv. Support – 3 (Fitch only) 

• Banks 2 – Guaranteed Banks with suitable Sovereign Support – In 
addition, the Council will use banks whose ratings fall below the criteria 
specified above if all of the following conditions are met: 

- (a) wholesale deposits in the bank are covered by a government 
guarantee;  

- (b) the government providing the guarantee is rated “AAA” by all three 
major rating agencies (Fitch, Moody’s and Standard & Poors); and 

- (c) the Council’s investments with the bank are limited to amounts and 
maturities within the terms of the stipulated guarantee. 

Page 60



 

-  - 

54

• Banks 3 – Eligible Institutions - the organisation is an Eligible Institution 
for the HM Treasury Credit Guarantee Scheme initially announced on 13 
October 2008, with the necessary short and long term ratings required in 
Banks 1 above.  These institutions have been subject to suitability checks 
before inclusion, and have access to HM Treasury liquidity if needed. 

• Banks 4 – The Council’s own banker for transactional purposes if the 
bank falls below the above criteria, although in this case balances will be 
minimised in both monetary size and time. 

• Bank Subsidiary and Treasury Operations – the Council will use these 
where the parent bank has the necessary ratings outlined above. 

• Building Societies – the Council will use all Societies which: 

i. meet the ratings for banks outlined above  

Or are both: 

ii. Eligible Institutions; and  

iii. Have assets in excess of £500m. 

• Money Market Funds – AAA 

• UK Government (including gilts and the DMADF) 

• Local Authorities, Parish Councils etc 

• Supranational institutions 

 
Funds for investment come from the following Sources 
a) Revenue Account Balances held by the Council 
b) Earmarked Reserves and Provisions 
c) Unapplied Capital Receipts 
d) Cash flow balances – income received before expenditure needs to be 

incurred 
 
At 30 Sep 2011 the Council held the following investments totalling £5,926,000 
 

Counterparty Date of 
Investment 

Date of 
Maturity 

Amount Interest 
Rate 

Hinckley & Rugby BS 25/08/2011 23/05/2012 2,000,000 1.5000 

Principality BS 31/01/2011 28/10/2011 1,650,000 1.4000 

West Bromwich Building 
Society 

20/07/2011 08/02/2012    600,000 1.2000 

West Bromwich Building 
Society 

09/08/2011 25/10/2011    800,000 0.7500 

Newcastle Building Society 03/02/2011 03/11/2011    500,000 1.5000 

HSBC Money Market 30/09/2011 03/10/2011    376,000 0.2500 

  
Details of all investments held during the half year are included in Appendix A 
attached.  
 

Page 61



 

-  - 

55

Details of the weighted average investment returns for each month and the 
quarter as a whole are shown in the table below together with the average 
overnight, 7 day and 3 month London Inter Bank Offer Rates (LIBOR) as a bench 
mark to the rates received by the Council. 
 
 
 

Period Weighted 
Average 
invested 

Average  
period 
(days) 

Average 
Return 

Overnight 
LIBOR 

7 Day 
LIBOR 

3 Month 
LIBOR 

April to 
Sept 4,940,814 26.96 1.005 0.5725 0.5939 0.8453 

 
The figures above show that the Council received a rate of return that is 
compatible with the returns available in the market. 
 
It also shows that the Weighted average life is within the maximum set of 0.5 
years 
 
 
Borrowing Activities 
 
Long term borrowing to finance Capital Expenditure   
 
The Council has a Capital Financing Requirement of around £14m which arises 
from previous decisions to incur Capital Expenditure that was not financed 
immediately by internal resources e.g. Capital Receipts or Grants giving rise to 
the need to borrow to finance the expenditure. This borrowing requirement can 
either be met by long or short term external borrowing or by internal borrowing 
i.e. using the cash behind the authority’s balances and reserves and foregoing 
investment income. At the present time the interest payable on long term 
borrowing is significantly greater than the returns the Council could expect on its 
investments and therefore the Council has adopted a policy of being 
“underborrowed” with only £4.3m of long term loans on its books. Short term 
loans from the PWLB currently cost 1.5% so if the Council was fully funded with 
short term money and was receiving investment income of 1% there would be a 
cost of £50,000 pa. With longer term rates at about 4.5% the cost would be 
£350,000pa. In these circumstances the Council has not undertaken any long 
term borrowing in the current year and has relied on short term borrowing to 
meet cash flow needs. 
  
Short term borrowing to cover cash flow shortfalls. 
 
Some short term borrowing took place to cover temporary cash flow shortfalls. 
The movements are as follows 
 
Amount outstanding at 1 April 2011   £5,500,000 
Total Amount borrowed                                      £9,400,000 
Total Amount repaid                                           £14,900,000 

Page 62



 

-  - 

56

Amount outstanding at 30 Sep 2010  £0.00 
 
The average amount borrowed was                   £1,490,000 
Average period of loans                                     6.3 Days 
Number of occasions                                         10 
Average rate of interest paid                              0.557% 
 
 
All borrowing was conducted with the Operational Limit set by the Council.   
 
 

4. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS (DB) 
 
 None arising directly from this report.  
 
5. LEGAL IMPLICATIONS (AB) 
 
 There are none 
 
6. CORPORATE PLAN IMPLICATIONS 
 
 This report supports the following Corporate Aims 

• Thriving Economy 
 
7. CONSULTATION 
 
 None 
 
8. RISK IMPLICATIONS 
 
 It is the Council’s policy to proactively identify and manage significant risks which 

may prevent delivery of business objectives. 
 
 It is not possible to eliminate or manage all risks all of the time and risks will 

remain which have not been identified. However, it is the officer’s opinion based 
on the information available, that the significant risks associated with this 
decision / project have been identified, assessed and that controls are in place to 
manage them effectively. 

 
 The following significant risks associated with this report / decisions were 

identified from this assessment: 
 

Management of significant (Net Red) Risks 

Risk Description Mitigating actions Owner 

Loss of investments due to 
failure of Counterparty 

Ensure Counterparty is 
financially secure prior to 
lending by confining activity 
to institutions on a list of 
approved institutions based 

D Bunker 

Page 63



 

-  - 

57

on credit ratings. 
 
Ensure that lending is for 
appropriate periods and 
amounts as per 
Counterparty list 

 
 
 
9. KNOWING YOUR COMMUNITY – EQUALITY AND RURAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
 Treasury management activities support all activities of the Borough Council and 

therefore impact on all areas of and communities within the Borough 
 
10. CORPORATE IMPLICATIONS 
 
 By submitting this report, the report author has taken the following into account: 

[if you require assistance in assessing these implications, please contact the 
person noted in parenthesis beside the item] 

 
- Community Safety implications  
- Environmental implications  
- ICT implications  
- Asset Management implications  
- Human Resources implications 
- Planning Implications  
- Voluntary Sector implications 

 
 
 
Background papers: Investment and borrowing records  
 
Contact Officer:  David Bunker Accountancy Manager ext 5609 
 
Executive Member:  

Page 64



Appendix A

INVESTMENTS 2011 - 2012

DATE RATE      % NOTICE BORROWER

AMOUNT      

£

DATE    

REPAID Outstanding

15/09/11 0.4000 16/09/11 Coventry BS 1,300,000 16/9/11

b/f 1.3600 25/08/11 Hinckley & Rugby 2,000,000 25/08/11

25/08/11 1.5000 23/05/12 Hinckley & Rugby 2,000,000 2,000,000

b/f 0.2500 01/04/11 Hsbc Money Mkt 432,000 01/04/11

04/04/11 0.2500 05/04/11 Hsbc Money Mkt 374,000 05/04/11

11/04/11 0.2500 12/04/11 Hsbc Money Mkt 421,000 12/04/11

12/04/11 0.2500 13/04/11 Hsbc Money Mkt 329,000 13/04/11

13/04/11 0.2500 14/04/11 Hsbc Money Mkt 530,000 14/04/11

19/04/11 0.2500 21/04/11 Hsbc Money Mkt 861,000 21/04/11

27/04/11 0.2500 28/04/11 Hsbc Money Mkt 376,000 28/04/11

03/05/11 0.2500 04/05/11 Hsbc Money Mkt 382,000 04/05/11

04/05/11 0.2500 05/05/11 Hsbc Money Mkt 268,000 05/05/11

11/05/11 0.2500 12/05/11 Hsbc Money Mkt 250,000 12/05/11

12/05/11 0.2500 16/05/11 Hsbc Money Mkt 370,000 16/05/11

16/05/11 0.2500 19/05/11 Hsbc Money Mkt 2,400,000 19/05/11

18/05/11 0.2500 19/05/11 Hsbc Money Mkt 303,000 19/05/11

19/05/11 0.2500 20/05/11 Hsbc Money Mkt 1,700,000 20/05/11

20/05/11 0.2500 23/05/11 Hsbc Money Mkt 950,000 23/05/11

23/05/11 0.2500 24/05/11 Hsbc Money Mkt 580,000 24/05/11

24/5/110 0.2500 25/05/11 Hsbc Money Mkt 301,000 25/05/11

31/05/11 0.2500 01/06/11 Hsbc Money Mkt 658,000 01/06/11

01/06/11 0.2500 02/06/11 Hsbc Money Mkt 4,500,000 02/06/11

02/06/11 0.2500 03/06/11 Hsbc Money Mkt 500,000 03/06/11

03/06/11 0.2500 07/06/11 Hsbc Money Mkt 350,000 07/06/11

15/06/11 0.2500 16/06/11 Hsbc Money Mkt 492,000 16/06/11

16/06/11 0.2500 17/06/11 Hsbc Money Mkt 637,000 17/06/11

20/06/11 0.2500 21/06/11 Hsbc Money Mkt 277,000 21/06/11

21/06/11 0.2500 22/06/11 Hsbc Money Mkt 346,000 22/06/11

23/06/11 0.2500 24/06/11 Hsbc Money Mkt 307,000 23/06/11

28/06/11 0.2500 29/06/11 Hsbc Money Mkt 406,000 29/06/11

29/06/11 0.2500 30/06/11 Hsbc Money Mkt 565,000 30/06/11

01/07/11 0.2500 04/07/11 Hsbc Money Mkt 986,000 04/07/11

11/07/11 0.2500 12/07/11 Hsbc Money Mkt 277,000 12/07/11

18/07/11 0.2500 19/07/11 Hsbc Money Mkt 270,000 19/07/11

19/07/11 0.2500 20/07/11 Hsbc Money Mkt 827,000 20/07/11

20/07/11 0.2500 22/07/11 Hsbc Money Mkt 313,000 22/07/11

25/07/11 0.2500 26/07/11 Hsbc Money Mkt 556,000 26/07/11

26/07/11 0.2500 28/07/11 Hsbc Money Mkt 510,000 28/07/11

01/08/11 0.2500 03/08/11 Hsbc Money Mkt 1,000,000 03/08/11

03/08/11 0.2500 04/08/11 Hsbc Money Mkt 390,000 4/8/11

11/08/11 0.2500 12/08/11 Hsbc Money Mkt 291,000 12/8/11

22/08/11 0.2500 23/08/11 Hsbc Money Mkt 743,000 23/8/11

30/08/11 0.2500 31/08/11 Hsbc Money Mkt 580,000 31/8/11

31/08/11 0.2500 01/09/11 Hsbc Money Mkt 526,000 1/9/11

01/09/11 0.2500 02/09/11 Hsbc Money Mkt 757,000 2/9/11

05/09/11 0.2500 06/09/11 Hsbc Money Mkt 403,000 5/9/11

06/09/11 0.2500 07/09/11 Hsbc Money Mkt 258,000 7/9/11

07/09/11 0.2500 08/09/11 Hsbc Money Mkt 370,000 8/9/11

08/09/11 0.2500 09/09/11 Hsbc Money Mkt 470,000 9/9/11

09/09/11 0.2500 12/09/11 Hsbc Money Mkt 292,000 12/9/11

Page 65



16/09/11 0.2500 19/09/11 Hsbc Money Mkt 292,000 19/9/11

19/09/11 0.2500 20/09/11 Hsbc Money Mkt 386,000 20/9/11

20/09/11 0.2500 21/09/11 Hsbc Money Mkt 287,000 21/9/11

28/09/11 0.2500 29/09/11 Hsbc Money Mkt 525,000 29/9/11

29/09/11 0.2500 30/09/11 Hsbc Money Mkt 525,000 30/9/11

30/09/11 0.2500 03/10/11 Hsbc Money Mkt 376,000 376,000

01/08/11 0.4000 11/08/11 Nationwide BS 2,000,000 11/8/11

01/09/11 0.4200 16/09/11 Nationwide BS 2,000,000 16/9/11

15/06/11 0.4000 24/06/11 NewCastle BS 1,000,000 24/06/11

24/06/11 0.4000 07/07/11 NewCastle BS 560,000 07/07/11

30/06/11 0.4000 07/07/11 NewCastle BS 740,000 07/07/11

01/08/11 0.4000 11/08/11 NewCastle BS 1,500,000 11/8/11

15/08/11 0.4000 22/08/11 NewCastle BS 1,100,000 22/8/11

01/09/11 0.5000 22/09/11 NewCastle BS 1,200,000 22/9/11

b/f 1.5000 03/11/11 NewCastle BS 500,000 500,000

b/f 1.4000 28/10/11 Principality BS 1,650,000 1,650,000

15/04/11 0.4000 19/04/11 Skipton Bs 1,560,000 19/04/11

01/07/11 0.4300 07/07/11 Skipton Bs 2,000,000 07/07/11

28/07/11 0.4300 11/08/11 Skipton Bs 1,400,000 11/08/11

15/08/11 0.4300 22/08/11 Skipton Bs 1,100,000 22/8/11

15/09/11 0.3000 16/09/11 Skipton Bs 1,400,000 16/9/11

07/06/11 0.8600 23/09/11 Skipton BS 600,000 23/09/11

09/05/11 0.4500 02/06/11 West Brom BS 500,000 02/06/11

15/06/11 0.3500 22/06/11 West Brom BS 1,500,000 22/06/11

01/07/11 0.3500 07/07/11 West Brom BS 1,300,000 07/07/11

15/07/11 0.3000 19/07/11 West Brom BS 1,700,000 19/07/11

22/07/11 0.3000 25/07/11 West Brom BS 1,056,000 25/07/11

04/08/11 0.3000 09/08/11 West Brom BS 750,000 9/8/11

01/09/11 0.3500 09/09/11 West Brom BS 500,000 9/9/11

12/09/11 0.3000 16/09/11 West Brom BS 500,000 16/9/11

09/08/11 0.7500 25/10/11 West Brom BS 800,000 800,000

20/07/11 1.2000 08/02/12 West Brom BS 600,000 600,000

Page 66



 

-  - 

60

REPORT NO FAP18 
 
FINANCE, AUDIT AND PERFORMANCE SELECT COMMITTEE - 31 OCTOBER 2011 
REPORT OF DEPUTY CHIEF EXECUTIVE (CORPORATE DIRECTION) 
RE: BUDGET STRATEGY 2012/13 
 
 
1. PURPOSE OF REPORT 
 
 To inform the Select Committee of the Budget Strategy for 2012/13 
 
2. RECOMMENDATION 
 
 That the Select Committee note the Budget Strategy for 2012/13 
 
3. BACKGROUND TO THE REPORT 
 

The Budget and Council Tax setting process for 2012/13 is likely to prove to be a 
very difficult time. Whilst actions taken by the Council in previous years may well 
have put us in a position to come through this round of budget setting with fewer 
difficult decisions to make compared with other Councils there will still be some 
decisions that will impact on the  level of services we provide. 

 
Members will be aware that the Comprehensive Spending Review announced 
last October (CSR10) envisaged a 25% reduction in the total Central 
Government funding available to Councils over the period 2011/12 to 2014/15. 
This announcement formed the basis of the 2011/12 Local Government Finance 
Settlement that was announced in December 2010. Whilst the CSR10 was silent 
on the phasing of the reductions in grant support it was assumed that it would be 
evenly phased over the life of the CSR. However, later in the year, when the 
Finance Settlement was announced it became apparent that the Grant 
Reductions were front loaded with this Council losing £908,000 in 2011/12 and a 
further £700,000 in 2012/13. This equates to a loss of Grant over the two years 
of 23%. This will be offset by the receipt of £349,000 New Homes Bonus in 
2011/12 and  the next five years. New Homes Bonus will be allocated to the 
Council each year based on the additional taxable Housing Stock delivered in the 
twelve months ending in the October preceding the start of that financial year. 
This additional resource will last for 6 years. The Government has said that it will 
protect resources available to certain service areas such as Education and Adult 
Social Care. This means that resources for other services will be further 
restricted and as such District Councils will suffer a greater reduction in grant 
than the 25% overall reductions announced. Grant allocations for 2013/14 and 
2014/15 have not been announced yet but could see a total reduction in grant 
over the four years approaching 35%.  

 
Assumptions to be used in preparation of 2012/13 Base Budget 

 
1. The 2012/13 base budget is to be based on the 2011/12 original budget 

Agenda Item 6

Page 67



 

-  - 

61

2. All one-off items in the 2011/12 original budget are to be removed and full 
year effects of part year reductions in 2011/12 implemented. Any savings or 
additional income identified as part of the last budget round but not being 
implemented until 2012/13 must be adjusted for the budget. 

 
3. Inflation 

 
a) Employees 

i) Pay Award – zero 
ii)   National Insurance – apply a rate of  7.2% 
iii) Employers Pension Contributions – the Employers Contribution rate should 
be increased by 1% of the payroll to take account of the impact of the triennial 
valuation of the Pension Fund currently being undertaken. (An employers rate 
of 17.5% should be used with an additional 1.6% being included for Ill Health 
retirement insurance). 
 

b) Supplies and Services  
i) Non Contract – no increase 
ii) Contracts, where RPI increases are allowed use a factor of 3.5% otherwise 
use the factor provided in the contract. 
 

c) Fees and Charges  
where an inflationary increase is called for then use RPI of 3.5% 

 
4. Growth  
 
It is highly unlikely that any additional money will be available for growth in 
2012/13. Consideration will be given to requests where additional resources are 
required to cover additional expenditure arising from additional statutory 
requirements or corporate priorities. Requests will need to be supported by both 
the relevant SLB and COB members and must be accompanied by an 
explanation as to why the costs cannot be met from existing resources. 
 
5. Funded Employees 
 
Where employee costs are met from external funding in the 2011/12 budget 
these will be subject to detailed scrutiny.  Employees who are on temporary 
contracts should only be budgeted for as long as the funding is definitely in place.  
Where funding has ceased these posts will be taken out of the budget and any 
resulting costs budgeted for. 
 
Where permanent employees costs are being met from external funding which 
has expired this needs to be highlighted and will be subject to further 
consideration by SLB. 

 
4. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS (DB) 
 
 All implications will be picked up in the Budget process and reflected in the 

2012/13 Revenue Budget 

Page 68



 

-  - 

62

 
5. LEGAL IMPLICATIONS (AB) 
  
 There are none 
 
6. CORPORATE PLAN IMPLICATIONS 
 
 This report supports all aims of the Corporate Plan 
 
7. CONSULTATION 
 
 None 
 
8. RISK IMPLICATIONS 
 
 It is the Council’s policy to proactively identify and manage significant risks which 

may prevent delivery of business objectives. 
 
 It is not possible to eliminate or manage all risks all of the time and risks will 

remain which have not been identified. However, it is the officer’s opinion based 
on the information available, that the significant risks associated with this 
decision / project have been identified, assessed and that controls are in place to 
manage them effectively. 

 
 The following significant risks associated with this report / decisions were 

identified from this assessment: 
 
 

Management of significant (Net Red) Risks 

Risk Description Mitigating actions Owner 

 
That the Council has insufficient 
resources to meet its aspirations 
and cannot set a balanced 
budget 

 
That the strategy is applied 
to produce a balanced 
budget and demands are 
matched to resources 

 
S. Kohli 

 
 
9. KNOWING YOUR COMMUNITY – EQUALITY AND RURAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
 The budget process will impact on all areas of the Borough and all groups within 

the population 
 
10. CORPORATE IMPLICATIONS 
 
 By submitting this report, the report author has taken the following into account: 

[if you require assistance in assessing these implications, please contact the 
person noted in parenthesis beside the item] 

 
- Community Safety implications  

Page 69



 

-  - 

63

- Environmental implications 
- ICT implications  
- Asset Management implications  
- Human Resources implications  
- Planning Implications  
- Voluntary Sector  

 
 
 
 
Background papers:  None 
 
Contact Officer:  Sanjiv Kohli - Deputy Chief Executive (Corporate Direction) 
 
Executive Member:  Cllr K Lynch 

Page 70



 

-  - 

64

REPORT NO FAP19 
 
 FINANCE, AUDIT AND PERFORMANCE SELECT COMMITTEE – 31 OCTOBER 
2011 
 
REPORT OF DEPUTY CHIEF EXECUTIVE (CORPORATE DIRECTION) 
RE: AUDIT RECOMMENDATION TRACKING 
 
 
1. PURPOSE OF REPORT 
 

To inform the Select Committee of the progress in implementing 2011/12 Audit 
Recommendations 

  
2. RECOMMENDATION 
 
 That the Select Committee note the report  
 
3. BACKGROUND TO THE REPORT 
 

At its meeting in July the Select Committee asked to be informed of the progress 
in the implementation of recommendations made by Internal Audit. Attached is a 
schedule of recommendations considered by the Committee to date and the 
progress made in implementing them.  
 

4. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS (DB) 
 
 None arising directly from this report.  
 
5. LEGAL IMPLICATIONS (AB) 
 
 There are none 
 
6. CORPORATE PLAN IMPLICATIONS 
 
 This report supports the following Corporate Aims 

• Thriving Economy 
 
7. CONSULTATION 
 
 None 
 
8. RISK IMPLICATIONS 
 
 It is the Council’s policy to proactively identify and manage significant risks which 

may prevent delivery of business objectives. 
 
 It is not possible to eliminate or manage all risks all of the time and risks will 

remain which have not been identified. However, it is the officer’s opinion based 

Agenda Item 7

Page 71



 

-  - 

65

on the information available, that the significant risks associated with this 
decision / project have been identified, assessed and that controls are in place to 
manage them effectively. 

 
 The following significant risks associated with this report / decisions were 

identified from this assessment: 
 

Management of significant (Net Red) Risks 

Risk Description Mitigating actions Owner 

None   

 
 
 
9. KNOWING YOUR COMMUNITY – EQUALITY AND RURAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
 None 
 
10. CORPORATE IMPLICATIONS 
 
 By submitting this report, the report author has taken the following into account: 

[if you require assistance in assessing these implications, please contact the 
person noted in parenthesis beside the item] 

 
- Community Safety implications  
- Environmental implications  
- ICT implications  
- Asset Management implications  
- Human Resources implications 
- Planning Implications  
- Voluntary Sector implications 

 
 
 
Background papers: Investment and borrowing records  
 
Contact Officer:  David Bunker Accountancy Manager ext 5609 
 
Executive Member:  

Page 72



Audit Recommendations - Progress Report - October 2011

Audit Recommendation Responsible 

manager

Implementation 

date

Completed

Car parks All unexplained amounts appearing on the 

transactions listing should be highlighted and 

analysed by the Streetscene Support 

Supervisor and Chief Cashier C Roffey 01 July 2011 Yes

Discussions should be held with Kings 

Security to ensure that banked cash 

amounts can be clearly matched to source 

(i.e individual car parks and ideally pay and 

display machines) C Roffey 01 September 2011 In progress

The Council should ensure that the incident 

report is provided by Kings and that it 

provides reassurance that the loss of cash 

boxes will not reoccur C Roffey 01 June 2011 Yes

Financial regulations a) Procurement Staff should maintain a 

register of waivers received from 

departments to ensure that an audit trail can 

be maintained b) Although the Financial 

Procedure Rules already state that all 

waivers should be made in consultation with 

the Procurement manage, the requirement 

for all waiver forms to be passed to 

procurement should also be clearly stated on 

the waiver request form. This will facilitate 

the process of maintaining a register 

J Kenny

Form 31 July 2011 

other next revision of 

FPR

Form done, Awaiting 

review of FPR

a) all waivers should be approved by a 

member of SLB in accordance with FPR b) 

All waiver requests should also go to the 

Procurement manager for consultation SLB

31 July 2011 with 

training throught 

2011/12 Yes

P
age 73



a) It is recommended that FPR be reviewed 

to to include a paragraph regarding Orders 

for Work, Goods and Services to state that 

"Orders for works goods and services must 

be made by the person receipting the the 

goods or services. Orders must 

subsequently be authorised in accordance 

with authorised approvers and their approval 

limits" b) Instances of non compliance 

should be monitored and appropriate action 

taken c) Management should consider 

introducing a statement where members of 

staff signto confirm they have read and 

understood the Council's FPRs . This can be 

acheived via a centralised policy acceptance 

system

J Kenny

To be considered as 

part of next review of 

FPR in Dec 2011 Awaiting review of FPR

Supporting People A copy of the current signed contract or 

extension between HBBC and Leicestershire 

(LCC) defining the service levels between 

both parties should be located and retained 

by HBBC

C Taylor 01 August 2011

Copies of the current 

contract extension 

documents were received 

by Leciestershire County 

Council, signed by 

Hinckley & Bosworth BC 

and returned 03/08/2011. 

Copies of which have 

been retained.   

P
age 74



a) Further liasion should be undertaken 

between the Council and LCC during the 

supporting people budget process to help 

minimise variances between forecast and 

actual LCC income b) The Finance 

Department should reconcile the actual 

income received to that expected as per the 

budget in order to manage expenditure 

accordingly D Bunker 01 September 2011 In progress

Community Safety a) The Council should ensure that there is a 

consistency in the informationinput into the 

incident date and logged date field. The 

incident should be the date the complaint 

was received and the logged date the date 

the first action was completed . The date of 

the actual incident should be recorded within 

the description of the complaint. This will 

also aid the in the effective monitoring of the 

days taken to process an incident. b) the 

Council should ensure that going forward all 

information is correctly input when initially 

receiving the complaint a) S Stacey, b)M 

Shellard/ J Wykes 01 August 2011 In progress

The Council should ensure that in all cases a 

closure report is completed and considered 

by a team leader when reviewing the 

closure. All Documents should be retained

M Shellard/J Wykes 01 August 2011 In progress

Enforcement Conditions/enforcement decisions set at the 

planning stage should be monitored for key 

delivery dates This monitoring should be 

documented for the event that issues with 

the planning arise at a later date

T Miller 01 January 2012 In progress

P
age 75



The enforcement team should visit 100% of 

cases within 15 days. Where this is not 

achieved management should investigate 

the reason for non-acheivement of the target 

and agree a course of actionto ensure that 

the visit is undertaken at the earliest 

opportunity T Miller 01 August 2011 Yes

P
age 76



- 1 - 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Finance, Audit & Performance Committee 
Work Programme 

2011/2012 
 
 
 

 
ISSUE 2011/03: October 2011 

 

 

A
genda Item

 9

P
age 77



- 2 - 

 

FINANCE, AUDIT & PERFORMANCE COMMITTEE WORK PROGRAMME 2011/2012 
 

1. Internal Audit Work Programme 

• Consider each Internal Audit Block and recommendations and ensure that recommendations are implemented and 
followed up 

 
2. Financial and Budget Monitoring 

• Final Accounts 2010/11 (July 2011) 

• Quarterly Budget Monitoring (September & December 2011, March 2012) 

• Capital Programme (December 2011) 

• Budget Proposals / Council Tax (February 2012) 

• Prudential Code (March 2012) 

• Treasury management Report (May 2012) 
 

3. Corporate Management 

• Risk Management (December 2011) 

• Annual Audit Plan (March 2012) 

• ISA260 Annual Audit Letter (September 2011) 

• Annual Audit Report (May 2012) 
 

P
age 78



- 3 - 

 

FINANCE, AUDIT & PERFORMANCE COMMITTEE 
 
Timetable 
 

Finance, Audit & Performance Committee – Monday 31 October 2011 

Function Activity/ 
Objective 

Reason  Desired Outcome Vision, Values 
and Aims 

Responsible 
(member/officer) 

Scrutiny Topics      

Performance 
Management 
Information 

Internal Audit 
Progress report 

Ensure findings are 
considered 

Recommendations are 
implemented 

All Corporate 
Aims 

Deputy Chief Exec 
(Corp. Direction) / 
Internal Audit 

Treasury 
Management 
Performance 
report 

Ensure value for Money 
 
 

Ensure the Executive 
delivers good value 
improving Services 

All Corporate 
Aims 
 

Deputy Chief Exec 
(Corp. Direction) / 
Accountancy 
Manager 

Tracking of 
implementation 
with previous 
recommendations 

     

Committee 
Management 
Issues 

Work 
Programme 
2011/12 

To review the 
Committee’s workload 

To ensure timely 
consideration of reports 
and consistency of 
distribution of workload 

All Corporate 
Aims 

Accountancy 
Manager/ Chairman 

 

P
age 79



- 4 - 

 

 

Finance, Audit & Performance Committee – Monday 12 December 2011 

Function Activity/ 
Objective 

Reason  Desired Outcome Vision, Values 
and Aims 

Responsible 
(member/officer) 

Scrutiny Topics      

Performance 
Management 
Information 

Internal Audit 
Progress Report 

Ensure findings are 
considered 

Recommendations are 
implemented 

All Corporate 
Aims 

Deputy Chief Exec 
(Corp. Direction) / 
Internal Audit 

Budget 
monitoring – 2nd 
quarter 

Quarterly update report Ensure Members are 
aware of current issues 
with regard to the budget 

Thriving 
Economy 

Deputy Chief Exec 
(Corp. Direction) / 
Accountancy 
Manager 

Capital 
Programme 
2011/12 to 
2013/14 

Backbench input to 
Capital Programme 

Ensure the Executive 
provides good value 
improving services 

All Corporate 
Aims 

Deputy Chief Exec 
(Corp. Direction) / 
Accountancy 
Manager 

Annual Audit 
Letter 

Review work of External 
Auditors 

Matters reported by 
External Auditors are 
considered by Elected 
members 

All Corporate 
Aims 

Deputy Chief Exec 
(Corp. Direction) 

Risk 
management 
progress report 

To provide an update 
on Risk management 
activities in the Council 

To ensure Risk 
management stays 
embedded in the Council 

All Corporate 
Aims 

Principal 
Performance and 
Risk Management 
Officer 

Tracking of 
implementation 
with previous 
recommendations 

     

Committee 
Management 
Issues 

Work 
Programme 
2011/12 

To review the 
Committee’s workload 

To ensure timely 
consideration of reports 
and consistency of 
distribution of workload 

All Corporate 
Aims 

Accountancy 
Manager/ Chairman 

 

P
age 80



- 5 - 

 

 
Finance, Audit & Performance Committee – Monday 30 January 2012 

Function Activity/ 
Objective 

Reason  Desired Outcome Vision, Values 
and Aims 

Responsible 
(member/officer) 

Scrutiny Topics      

Performance 
Management 
Information 

Internal Audit 
Progress Report 

Ensure findings are 
considered 

Recommendations are 
implemented 

All Corporate 
Aims 

Deputy Chief Exec 
(Corp. Direction) / 
Internal Audit 

Revenue 
Budget and 
Council Tax 
Proposals 
2012/13 

Ensure Value for Money 
and allow backbench 
input into the Budget 
and Council Tax setting 
process 
 

Ensure the Executive 
delivers good value 
improving services  
 

All Corporate 
Aims 
 

Deputy Chief Exec 
(Corp. Direction) / 
Accountancy 
Manager 
 

Capital 
Programme 
2011/12 to 
2013/14 

Backbench input to 
Capital Programme 

Ensure the Executive 
provides good value 
improving services 

All Corporate 
Aims 

Deputy Chief Exec 
(Corp. Direction) / 
Accountancy 
Manager 

Treasury 
Management 
Performance 
report 

Ensure value for Money 
 
 

Ensure the Executive 
delivers good value 
improving Services 

All Corporate 
Aims 
 

Deputy Chief Exec 
(Corp. Direction) / 
Accountancy 
Manager 

Tracking of 
implementation 
with previous 
recommendations 

     

Committee 
Management 
Issues 

Work 
Programme 
2011/12 

To review the 
Committee’s workload 

To ensure timely 
consideration of reports 
and consistency of 
distribution of workload 

All Corporate 
Aims 

Accountancy 
Manager/ Chairman 

 

P
age 81



- 6 - 

 

 
Finance, Audit & Performance Committee – Monday 19 March 2011 

Function Activity/ 
Objective 

Reason  Desired Outcome Vision, Values 
and Aims 

Responsible 
(member/officer) 

Scrutiny Topics      

Performance 
Management 
Information 

Internal Audit 
Progress Report 

Ensure findings are 
considered 

Recommendations are 
implemented 

All Corporate 
Aims 

Deputy Chief Exec 
(Corp. Direction) / 
Internal Audit 

Budget 
monitoring – 3rd 
quarter 

Quarterly update report Ensure Members are 
aware of current issues 
with regard to the budget 

Thriving 
Economy 

Deputy Chief Exec 
(Corp. Direction) / 
Accountancy 
Manager 

Annual Audit 
and Inspection 
Letter 

Review work of External 
Auditors 

Matters reported by 
External Auditors are 
considered by Elected 
members 

All Corporate 
Aims 

Deputy Chief Exec 
(Corp. Direction) 

Prudential code Ensure value for Money 
 
 

Ensure the Executive 
delivers good value 
improving Services 

All Corporate 
Aims 
 

Deputy Chief Exec 
(Corp. Direction) / 
Accountancy 
Manager 
 

Annual Audit 
Plan 

Provide the plan for 
external audit 

Plan approved All Corporate 
Aims 

Deputy Chief 
Executive 
(Corporate 
Directoin) 

Tracking of 
implementation 
with previous 
recommendations 

     

Committee 
Management 
Issues 

Work 
Programme 
2011/12 

To review the 
Committee’s workload 

To ensure timely 
consideration of reports 
and consistency of 
distribution of workload 

All Corporate 
Aims 

Accountancy 
Manager/ Chairman 

 

P
age 82



- 7 - 

 

 
Finance, Audit & Performance Committee – Monday 30 April 2011 

Function Activity/ 
Objective 

Reason  Desired Outcome Vision, Values 
and Aims 

Responsible 
(member/officer) 

Scrutiny Topics      

Performance 
Management 
Information 

Internal Audit 
Progress Report 

Ensure findings are 
considered 

Recommendations are 
implemented 

All Corporate 
Aims 

Deputy Chief Exec 
(Corp. Direction) / 
Internal Audit 

Annual Audit 
Report 2011/12 
(internal) 

To provide assessment 
of internal control 

Assurance of internal 
control and risk 
management 

All Corporate 
Aims 

Deputy Chief 
Executive 
(Corporate 
Direction ) / Internal 
Audit 

Treasury 
Management 
Performance 
report 

Ensure value for Money 
 
 

Ensure the Executive 
delivers good value 
improving Services 

All Corporate 
Aims 
 

Deputy Chief Exec 
(Corp. Direction) / 
Accountancy 
Manager 

Tracking of 
implementation 
with previous 
recommendations 

     

Committee 
Management 
Issues 

Work 
Programme 
2011/12 

To review the 
Committee’s workload 

To ensure timely 
consideration of reports 
and consistency of 
distribution of workload 

All Corporate 
Aims 

Accountancy 
Manager/ Chairman 

 

P
age 83



P
age 84

T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING
	4 INTERNAL AUDIT PROGRESS REPORT
	5 TREASURY MANAGEMENT ACTIVITY HALF YEAR TO 30 SEPTEMBER 2011
	FAP17 - appendix

	6 BUDGET STRATEGY 2012/13
	7 AUDIT RECOMMENDATION TRACKING
	FAP19 - append

	9 WORK PROGRAMME 2011/12

